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Hong Kong as an International Financial Centre (“IFC") stood
firm and stable throughout the global pandemic in 2020/21,
as evidenced by the improvement in ranking from 5th to 4th
in the latest Global Financial Centres Index.

Stability, during these atypical years, is a privilege. Amid
global efforts in containing the pandemic, different industries
strived to identify their ways to survive and rebound while the
financial services industry has been relatively less impacted.

This stability was attributed to fellow industry practitioners,
who have continued to live up to their professionalism in
contributing to the high-quality provision of financial services.
Such precious stability was also reliant on the prompt
responses we have made with thoughtful planning.

Hong Kong's financial system has remained very vibrant in the
past year. Our stock market recorded a significant increase
in average daily turnover; and the banking sector remained
resilient with its robust capital and liquidity positions. The
number of insurers operated in Hong Kong continues to be
the highest in Asia.

Looking ahead, uncertainties over the pace of global
economic recovery may linger and tensions in the geopolitical
environment may remain. Notwithstanding this veil of
unpredictability, Hong Kong shall determine its most effective
course of action.
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For the financial services industry, the Financial Services
Development Council ("FSDC") has worked toward making
the unpredictable more manageable. With the continued
contribution and guidance from the Board, committees and
working groups, the FSDC published in this financial year
nine research reports and other documents to enhance
Hong Kong status as an IFC. The publications cover a range
of topics including Hong Kong's financial connectivity role
in the Greater Bay Area and offshore Renminbi businesses;
the strategic development of Hong Kong as a regional hub
for environmental, social and governance; and family office
businesses; expanding access to the A-share market; central
bank digital currencies; as well as group tax loss relief.

On the market development front, we hosted, co-organised
and sponsored large-scale events locally, regionally and
internationally. The FSDC made extensive use of digital tools to
connect with stakeholders in the city and the rest of the world
— gathering their views and experiences, as well as fostering
collaborations. We signed Memoranda of Understanding to
reinforce links with financial centres including Casablanca and
Paris. We also were featured side by side with other leading
financial centres in the latest launch of the Global Financial
Centres Index 29.

In terms of talent development, the FSDC administrated the
first job creation scheme — Financial Industry Recruitment
Scheme for Tomorrow (“FIRST”) — dedicated to the financial
services industry under the Government’s Anti-epidemic Fund.
Since its launch in September 2020, FIRST has created 1,500
jobs and over 90% of which have been filled, benefiting
about 750 eligible employers. In addition to the well-
received Practitioner Speaker Series and annual Career Day,
we expanded the Talent Amplifier Programme (“TAP") to
cultivate better understanding of the work nature and culture
of different sectors within the financial services industry.
Furthermore, the TAP would provide selected tertiary students
with opportunities to job shadow c-suite executives and
experience firsthand what a usual business day is like for these
leaders.

This Annual Report manages to set out the salient parts of
the work that the FSDC had done in 2020/21, but it is not
enough to detail the valuable leadership and counsel that
all the directors, committee and working group members
have bestowed. Thanks to all their contributions and to the
dedication of our executive team led by our Executive Director
Dr King Au, | am confident that the FSDC will continue to cast
its positive impacts on the financial services industry.

Laurence Li Lu-jen
Chairman
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| am grateful for the great opportunity to contribute towards
the success of Hong Kong's financial services industry as
the Executive Director of the Financial Services Development
Council ("FSDC"). To this end, | must thank the Chairman and
the Board for trusting me, and my predecessor for building a
solid foundation with a strong team of professionals.

When Challenges Meet Opportunities

2020/21 was a year like no other, to say the least. With the
impact of COVID-19 hitting the world hard and fast, the
winds of change have pervaded different aspects of how the
financial services industry and the FSDC functioned.

Hong Kong's financial services industry has continued to thrive
and | am enthralled by its resilience demonstrated amidst the
many changes. With a negligible dip of 0.6% in exports of
financial services on a year-on-year (“YoY") basis in 2020,
Hong Kong has exhibited once again its super connectivity
between the Mainland and international markets. Among
others, our capital market continued to flourish, as the overall
initial public offering (“IPO”) market reached a recent high
during the year, with total funds raised jumping 26% YoY to
HK$397.5 billion in 2020 through 154 IPO listings. Moreover,
gross premium of the insurance industry increased 4.9% YoY
in 2020, reaching HK$608.4 billion. This was supported by
an aggregate inflow of some HK$383.5 billion into the Hong
Kong dollar in 2020, showing investors’ confidence in our
financial system and the economy.
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MESSAGE FROM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Indeed, notwithstanding all the headwinds and the changing
socioeconomic landscape around the globe, the FSDC was
able to respond quickly to these challenges and grasp
new opportunities in fulfilling its key objectives under the
leadership of the Board and with the support of the financial
services industry. During the year under review, the FSDC
continued to develop and execute its long-term strategic
plan by fostering synergy across its core functions namely
research, market promotion and human capital development.
I am delighted to report that our team has continued to work
closely with the industry, issuing nine research publications
and participating in 47 industry events. Details about our work
can be found in the Directors’ Report section.

Looking Ahead

Although 2020/21 was difficult as everyone had to wrestle
with significant and prompt changes, it also offered glimpses
of inspiration since every cloud has a silver lining as evidenced
by the new initiatives across our three main functions.

Not only did the pandemic accelerate technology adoption
across different sectors, it also reminded us of the importance
of sustainable development on a global landscape. These
awakening trends have reaffirmed our research focus in
2021/22 that will include four important themes, namely
developing Hong Kong as a leading regional green and
sustainable finance hub, strengthening our city’s FinTech
capabilities, utilising our fine asset and wealth management
ecosystem, and enhancing our connectivity with the Mainland
and the rest of the world.

While we are all looking forward to the day when
international travels will become hassle-free again, we will
continue to promote Hong Kong as an international financial
centre globally via virtual means. As we do so, we will strive to
leverage our extensive professional network, showcasing the
deep talent pool we cannot take for granted.
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Undeniably, as the pandemic has induced faster adoption of
technology and brought up the awareness of ESG investment,
we will also need to equip our students and practitioners with
relevant knowledge accordingly. Besides some event-driven
learning opportunities, the FSDC will also complete a policy
research paper to map out the implications of such emerging
trends on the future demand for talent.

Feeling Grateful

Taking this opportunity, | would also like to thank our team
who showed incredible agility, adaptability and resilience over
the past year. | would like to thank our Board, Committee
and Working Group members for contributing valuable time,
efforts and insights to our work, and look forward to working
closely with you all for the betterment of Hong Kong's
financial services industry.

Au King-lun
Executive Director
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MISSION

The Financial Services Development Council (“FSDC") was
established in 2013 by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government (“the Government”) as a high-level, cross-
sectoral advisory body to engage the industry in formulating
proposals to promote the further development of financial
services industry of Hong Kong and to map out the strategic
direction for the development.

The FSDC has been incorporated as a company limited by
guarantee with effect from September 2018 to allow it
to better discharge its functions through research, market
promotion and human capital development with more
flexibility.

Objectives

The FSDC aims to:

1. advise the Government on strategies and measures to
expand the scope of the financial markets and enhance
the competitiveness of Hong Kong as an international
financial centre;

2. support the financial services industry of Hong Kong in
developing the core competence and knowledge of its
practitioners; and

3. promote the financial services industry of Hong Kong

and Hong Kong as an international financial centre in
the Mainland and overseas.
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Chief Executive, Hong Kong
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Former Chief Executive Officer
Financial Reporting Council

(Till 16 January 2021)
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Managing Director
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BRERESEEBR AR
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Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Haitong International Securities Group Limited
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Senior Partner

Managing Partner, Greater China
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10 ANNUAL REPORT # 3R 2020/21

13

15

17

Z R %&£ Mr Brian Li Man-bun
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Co-Chief Executive

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

E¥E %+ Ms Amy Lo Choi-wan
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(FFA 202141717 H Fi15)

Co-Head UBS Wealth Management Asia Pacific
Head and Chief Executive UBS Hong Kong Branch
UBS AG
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Senior Partner, Hong Kong

Vice Chairman, KPMG China
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Mr Andrew Au
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produces pragmatic action points for consideration by the
Government, regulators, industry and other stakeholders.
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Mr Mervyn Chow

Partner

Hillhouse Capital Management
Limited

Ms Y.K. Park
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Ms Y.K. Park

Head of Responsible Investment &
Governance, Asia Pacific

APG Asset Management Asia
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Mr Chordio Chan

General Manager & Head
of Investment, Investment
Management

Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited
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Mr Mark Dickens
Former Chief Executive Officer
Financial Reporting Council
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Chief Executive Officer
BEA Union Investment
Management Limited
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Chief Compliance Officer, Asia Pacific

Citadel Enterprise Asia Limited
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Mr Donald Perry Kanak
Chairman, Prudential Insurance
Growth Markets

Prudential Corporation Asia

Mr Jack Zhang
Chief Executive Officer
Airwallex (Hong Kong) Limited
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(From 4 May 2020)
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and the Treasury
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Mainland Opportunities Committee

MBS NSNS BN EMAM TS The Mainland Opportunities Committee serves to study the
HEBKERIHEE ULREEEBLHM  Mainland’s financial reform and the internationalisation
TR E - ITRIBIET - AHEB/NEE  of its market and currency and their implications for the
KEBEBMEENBEEAR BBAMEZS  finandal services industry of Hong Kong. In the process, it
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Prof Shusong Ba
Managing Director and
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Hong Kong Exchanges and
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Chief Economist

China Banking Association

from Government, regulators and industry for activities to the
mutual benefit of the Mainland and Hong Kong.
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Mr Leiming Chen Dr Hu Zhanghong

Senior Vice President CEO

Ant Group Greater Bay Area Homeland
(From 4 May 2020) Investments Limited
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Chairman
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Kong) Limited
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Director
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Director & General Manager
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Managing Director

Head of China Global Markets
QFIl Representative

UBS AG

i I8 22 =

AR ERAR AR
R BEERBFIER
REE N B B IR AR

Ms Bonnie Tse

General Manager, Strategy and
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AIA International Limited
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Mr Victor Ho

Registered Foreign Lawyer
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Chairman
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Ms Winnie Wong Chi-shun

CEO & Executive Director

Asia Insurance Company Limited /
Avo Insurance Company Limited
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New Business Committee

The New Business Committee focuses on business in
financial services that enhances and reinforces Hong Kong's
competitiveness and distinctively differentiates our unique
position. Its goal is to enhance our economy and society. It
works in close collaboration with other Committees under the
FSDC, industry bodies and stakeholders to study possible areas
of new business that can be developed in Hong Kong.
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Mainland China and Hong Kong
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Asia Pacific Financial Services Tax
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HK Asset and Wealth Management
Tax Leader
PricewaterhouseCoopers
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Mr Jeremy Dinshaw Lam
Partner and Head of Financial
Services Practice

Deacons
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Mr Arthur Lau

Co-Founder & Partner

Ark Pacific Capital Management
(From 4 May 2020)
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Director, Sustainable Investing
Fidelity International
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Mr Woo Pat-nie

Head of Sustainable Finance,
Hong Kong

KPMG

Global Co-Head, Sustainable
Finance
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Mr Damien Green
Chief Executive Officer
Manulife (International) Limited
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Mr Ronald Lee
Managing Director
Goldman Sachs Asia LLC
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Mr Mark Shipman

Partner and Global Head of Funds
& Investment Management
Clifford Chance
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Ms Angelina Kwan

Group Chief Operating Officer &
Chief Risk Officer

Hashkey Group
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Mr Ernest Leung
Group Chief Operating Officer
Welab
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Mr Patrick Tsang
Chief Executive Officer
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
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Mr Danny Lee
Partner
Blue Pool Capital Limited
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Mr Charles Lin
Vice Chairman of CLSA
CLSA Group
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Ms Zhang Li

Chief Executive Officer

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Co Ltd, Hong Kong Branch
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Mr Dean Chisholm
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Mr Dean Chisholm

Regional Head of Operations, Asia
Pacific

Invesco Asset Management Pacific
Limited
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Mr Mark Saunders

Group Executive, Chief Strategy &
Corporate Development Officer
AIA Group
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Mr Yam Chi-fai
Senior Advisor

Sinosoft (International) Co. Ltd.
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Goldman Sachs Asia Bank Limited

Chairman

Mr Tim Freshwater
Chairman
Goldman Sachs Asia Bank Limited

Mr Dylan Bryant
Consultant, UNEP Finance Initiative
Principles of Sustainable Insurance
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Market Development Committee

The Market Development Committee serves to raise the
profile of Hong Kong's financial services industry locally, in
the Mainland and in overseas markets. It aims to enhance
the effectiveness and focus of promotional efforts of various
industry stakeholders by being a strategic coordinator and/or
partner to champion the Hong Kong Inc. brand for financial
services. Working alongside the other Committees under
the FSDC and engaging with the stakeholders, the Market
Development Committee works towards promoting Hong
Kong as the prime choice for global and Mainland firms to
locate financial services operations.
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EAELESELRITERAA BEAREEBEHE Moelis & Company
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Ms Diana Cesar Dr Eva Chan Yee-wah Mr Glenn Fok

Group General Manager Chairman Senior Consultant
Chief Executive, Hong Kong Hong Kong Investor Relations Moelis & Company
The Hongkong and Shanghai Association

Banking Corporation Limited

(From 4 May 2020)
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Mr Benson Luk Hon-man
Chief Strategy Officer,
Chairman’s Office

Lai Sun Group

(From 4 May 2020)

Mr Stephen Phillips
Director-General of Investment
Promotion

Invest Hong Kong

Ms Daisy Yeung
Chief Executive Officer
Emperor Capital Group
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Dr Patrick Lau

Deputy Executive Director
Hong Kong Trade Development
Council
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Mr Leland Sun

Managing Director

Pan Asian Mortgage Company
Limited
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Ms Xu Qin
Managing Director and Partner
Boston Consulting Group
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Ms Amy Lo Choi-wan
Co-Head UBS Wealth
Management Asia Pacific
Head and Chief Executive UBS
Hong Kong Branch

UBS AG
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Ms Sally Wan
Chief Executive Officer
AXA Hong Kong and Macau

=y
*

&

W & &
M OF o
o> my

B M

A

Mr Conrad Yan
Managing Partner
Albamen Capital Partners
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Dr Wilson Chan Fung-cheung
Associate Director of MBA
Programme

City University of Hong Kong
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Ms Cheung Sau-fun Susie
Co-Convenor

Asia-Pacific Structured Finance
Association
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Mr Frederick Ngan

Bowtie Life Insurance Company
Limited

Co-Founder & Co-CEO
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Ms Serina Wong
Managing Partner

Dresden Green Consulting Limited
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Mr Stephen Liang

Assistant Executive Director
Hong Kong Trade Development
Council
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Human Capital Committee

The Human Capital Committee examines the strategic
development of human capital in the financial services industry
with a holistic view. It aims to strengthen collaboration
between the demand and supply sides of the financial talent
pool. It supports capacity building for our home-grown
professionals and identifies issues which may hinder Hong
Kong from attracting the right talents, with due consideration
to the fast-evolving nature of financial services and the
increasingly global and regional focus of the industry.
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Prof Kalok Chan Mr Lee Hon-cheung Mr James Tam Chor Kiu

Wei Lun Professor of Finance, CUHK Managing Director Managing Director

Business School Worldwide Consulting Group Co. Bain Capital Private Equity (Asia), LLC

Chairman of Department of Finance Ltd.

The Chinese University of Hong Kong (From 4 May 2020)
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Dr Gordon Tsui Luen On
Chairman

Acer King Securities Ltd.
Chairman

Hong Kong Securities Association
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Mr Thomas Wong
Founder & Chief Investment Officer
Optimas Capital Limited
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Mr Albert Wong Hak-keung
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation
(From 4 May 2020)
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Mr Peter Yan King-shun

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited
(From 4 May 2020)
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Mr Eric Hui
Chief Executive Officer
Zurich Insurance (Hong Kong)
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Partner
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Prof Anna Wong Wai-kwan
Professor of Practice in Finance
HKU Business School, The University
of Hong Kong

(From 4 May 2020)
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Mr Phillip Meyer

General Counsel, Chief Compliance
Officer & Co-Chief Operating Officer
Oasis Management Company Ltd.
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Chief Executive Officer
Zeal Asset Management Limited
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Mr Ivan Wong

Managing Director & Co-Head,
North Asia, HSBC Private Banking
The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
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Ms Lena Chan
Managing Director
Wellfull Securities Company Limited
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BREEFRATERE

Mr Joe Ngai

Senior Partner

Managing Partner, Greater China
McKinsey & Company, Inc. Hong
Kong
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Mr Mervyn Chow

Partner

Hillhouse Capital Management
Limited

s5EELT
Global Sage Limited
Executive Chairman

Ms Louisa Wong
Executive Chairman
Global Sage Limited
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Dr Stan Ho Ho-ming

Chief Executive Officer
Lianhe Ratings Global Limited
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Corporate Governance Committee

HWESHNERSERNWANER B K& The Corporate Governance Committee advises the Board
THEENBRERENEFAEZESIEALE  on the overall policies and procedures relating to human
HEoMBEERNMEIBEBRTMEMNZEERME resources, financial and administrative matters of the
ITHM ERSEBNFETS - FBEMEE  FSDC. It reviews the organization structure and level of
BR EESERHMBURIRIRESH &  staff remuneration; examines the annual plan, budget and
SN BENET UAREBEEMRFIT  financial statements of the FSDC; oversees the financial
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A% A Convenor
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Mr Andrew Walter Bougourd Ross
Weir

Senior Partner, Hong Kong

Vice Chairman, KPMG China
KPMG

K& Members
TEChE
Temple Chambers

BIR KA

Mr Laurence Li Lu-jen
Senior Counsel
Temple Chambers
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position and investment of funds of the FSDC; recommends
the appointment of external auditors; and considers any
administrative matters as and when necessary.
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Dr Au King-lun

Executive Director

Financial Services Development
Council

(Till 20 July 2020)
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Ms Lena Chan

Managing Director
Wellfull Securities Company Limited
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Ms May Chan Wing-shiu Mr Chris Sun Yuk-han

Deputy Secretary for Financial Former Deputy Secretary for
Services & the Treasury (Financial Financial Services & the Treasury
Services)1 (Financial Services)1

Financial Services and the Treasury Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau Bureau

(From 28 December 2020) (Till 18 December 2020)
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Enhancing Hong Kong’s Status as Offshore
RMB Business Hub through the Development
of the RMB Asset Market (May 2020)

During the expedited internationalisation of renminbi (“RMB")
during the past decades, Hong Kong has established and
cemented its position as an offshore RMB centre, having
formed the world’s largest RMB liquidity pool and providing
the richest RMB product basket. As the international
financial centre of China, Hong Kong has played and will
continue to play an indispensable role in promoting RMB
internationalisation. This report serves as an extension of
the FSDC's previous work on this subject and sets out a few
strategic directions.

The paper proposes the following policy recommendations: (i)
develop Hong Kong into a safe and reliable cross-border and
cross-system trading, clearing, settlement and custodian centre
in the Asian time zone; (ii) promote the development of the
offshore RMB bond market by enriching product offerings; (iii)
enhance financial innovation in cross-boundary investment and
the free trade account system; (vi) establish Hong Kong's local
insurance-linked securities market and accelerate the rollout of
supporting regulations and policies; and (v) strengthen Hong
Kong’s pivotal role in the Belt and Road (“B&R") initiative by
providing liquidity for RMB transactions.

N
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These recommendations were prepared with the aim of
diversifying RMB-denominated products and deepening the
offshore RMB asset market, so as to enhance the function of
RMB as an investment currency, thus creating new growth
opportunities for the financial services industry along the way.

Hong Kong’s Unique Role in Enhancing
Financial Connectivity in the Greater Bay Area
(June 2020)

Market connectivity with the Mainland, in particular within the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (“the GBA"),
is of high priority to the research work of the FSDC. Following
the promulgation of the outline development plan of the GBA,
the implementation and announcement of various support
measures, aimed to foster the flow of people, goods, capital
and information, had taken the level of market connectivity to
a new height.

In this context, the aim of this FSDC paper is to examine what
more can be achieved from a financial services perspective.
Centring around people’s demand for financial services, the
paper recommends connecting cross-boundary payment
and transfer infrastructure, enhancing the convenience of
remote account opening procedures, fostering cross-boundary
property-backed mortgage financing, developing cross-
boundary insurance business and expanding two-way wealth
management and investment channels.

It is believed that, through capitalising on its unique strengths
in the GBA, Hong Kong can play a crucial role in promoting
the integrated development of the financial services industry,
while gaining direct access to a larger customer base and
unprecedented business opportunities therein.

N
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Hong Kong - Developing into the Global ESG
Investment Hub of Asia (July 2020)

Global dialogues and international cooperation in relation to
Social and Governance (“ESG") issues have
been growing and evolving rapidly over recent years. In Hong

Environmental,

Kong, relevant stakeholders and market participants have
taken tremendous efforts in incorporating ESG factors into
their investment and operating process, and are working
closely to nurture the ESG ecosystem in the city.

In tandem, the FSDC continues to place a strong emphasis
on ESG. Building on the two previous reports that aimed
at positioning Hong Kong in the global ESG landscape, this
report summarises views from a spectrum of key stakeholders,
including asset and wealth owners and managers,
intermediaries and other entities.

With an aim of further strengthening Hong Kong's role
as the preferred ESG investment hub in the region, this
report sets out a number of recommendations: (i) a more
coordinated policy environment should be promoted with
the development of an ESG policy roadmap; (ii) the Insurance
Authority (“IA") to encourage insurers’ disclosure of their
ESG policies; (iii) regulators to commence preparatory work
on strengthening oversight of nonfinancial reporting; (iv) the
Government to provide companies with subsidies for eligible
ESG training courses to enhance knowledge and skills; and
(v) an information-sharing platform should be established to
promote best practices.

N
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Family Wisdom: A Family Office Hub in Hong
Kong (July 2020)

Family offices have become increasingly important to the
financial services industry of different financial centres not
only because of the vast business potentials, but also as an
evidence of the financial centres’ overall competitiveness.
Following this trend, global financial centres, by leveraging
their own special prowess, are striving to become the home to
family offices from around the globe.

Hong Kong, with a strong professional services sector,
abundant supply of talents, vibrant markets and close ties with
the Mainland and the rest of the world, is advantageously
positioned to accommodate the diversified investment needs
of family offices and grow itself into a regional and global
family office hub.

To this end, this report was prepared with an aim of creating
a more conducive operating environment and ecosystem
for family offices, thus strengthening Hong Kong’s value
proposition as the family office hub in Asia. The policy
recommendations focus on the following four key areas: (i)
more flexible regulatory regime with a higher degree of clarity;
(ii) more competitive tax treatment; (iii) more tailored training
programmes; and (iv) establishing a one-stop liaison and
services centre.

N
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Hong Kong Catching Up - Modernising Hong
Kong’'s Tax Loss Relief (August 2020)

A low, simple and competitive tax regime is one of the
cornerstones for Hong Kong’s success as an international
financial centre. For this, the FSDC reviews relevant tax policies
from time to time to ensure they remain competitive. During
the year, the FSDC looked into the possible introduction of
group tax loss relief measures.

As an extension of the FSDC report published in September
2017 on the same subject, this report aims to propose a
relatively straightforward and simple Group Tax Loss Relief
regime that can allow for unutilised tax losses of one group
company or branch to be transferred and set off against the
taxable profits of another company or branch within the same
corporate group. As a balance to opinions on the previous
paper from different stakeholders, this report proposes that
the Group Tax Loss Relief regime would only allow carry back
of tax losses of one year of the same company or branch,
while only tax losses incurred since the year of enactment of
the regime could be set off.
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One Step Forward: Expanding Access to the
A-Share Market (September 2020)

Hong Kong's role as an investment gateway to and from
the Mainland is underpinned by the wide range of financial
products and innovative connectivity schemes. Among the
various markets, the listed structured products market in Hong
Kong is one characterised by its sound regulatory regime,
mature market participants and transparent disclosure of
product information, which can be further utilised to enhance
the access of international investors to the A-share market.

With this in mind, the FSDC published a report in April 2017
setting out policy recommendations with a view to optimising
Hong Kong's listed structured products market. Since the
publication of the report, various regulatory developments
have taken place. Among others, the publication of “Guide
on Product Review and Approval Process for Listed Structured
Products” by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
("HKEX") has facilitated the introduction of new products in
a more efficient manner and within a clear time frame; and
the introduction of inline warrants further diversified available
product types in the market.

As the listed structured products market continues to mature,
the FSDC revisited this topic, building on the previous
observations with an additional cross-boundary element.
This report proposes a two-phased approach to enrich
listed structured product offerings. In phase 1, a gradual
introduction of Hong Kong listed structured products linked
to Stock Connect A-Shares or A-Share can be explored; and,
when conditions allow, it is recommended to gradually expand
the scope of eligible securities for Southbound Stock Connect
to include selected eligible listed structured products in
phase 2.
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Recent Developments on Central Bank Digital
Currencies (January 2021)

Central Bank Digital Currencies (“CBDCs"), as a relatively
novel concept in the tide of financial technology (“FinTech”)
development, have gradually gained traction in different
markets. The Mainland started a research on CBDC as early
as in 2014, and through years of work, has successfully
developed the country’s own version of CBDC, referred to
as “e-CNY"”. Against this background, Hong Kong - as the
largest offshore RMB hub in the world - is well positioned to
facilitate the exploration of e-CNY offshore.

In this regard, the launch of e-CNY, the first CBDC issued by a
major economy, officially entered the testing stage for use by
the public in 2020. Noting the importance of this milestone,
the FSDC formed a working group under the Policy Research
Committee in March 2020, co-led by Mr Jim Lai and Prof Ba
Shusong. Comprising members experienced in technology,
finance, law and regulations, the working group focused on
studying the potential uses of such CBDCs.

By elaborating on the latest work and achievements related
to CBDCs in the Mainland and Hong Kong, the FSDC wishes
to stimulate further discussions around Hong Kong's role in
the application, particularly the cross-boundary and offshore
use, of e-CNY. The brief also sets out some of the key
developments around CBDCs globally across parameters such
as the architecture, user segment and scope.
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During 2020/21, the new developments on FSDC’s
research reports include:

(1) Strengthening Hong Kong as a Leading
Global International Financial Centre
(November 2013)

- To make Hong Kong a more attractive fund domiciliation

location, the Government introduced a limited
partnership regime for funds (such as private equity and
venture capital funds) on 31 August 2020. 173 limited
partnership funds have been registered (as at 7 April
2021).

- To further enhance the competitiveness of the open-

ended fund company (“OFC"”) regime, as announced
in the 2021/22 Budget, government subsidies will be
provided for OFCs set up in or relocated to Hong Kong
in the coming three years. The subsidy will cover 70% of
the expenses paid to local professional service providers
for the setting up of OFCs, subject to a cap of $1 million
per OFC.

- Furthermore, the Government announced in the 2021/22

Budget the plan to submit a legislative proposal this year
to allow foreign investment funds to re-domicile to Hong
Kong for registration as OFCs or limited partnership
funds.
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(3)

The Financial Secretary has announced in the 2021/22
Budget the setting up of a steering group to further
promote the development of the bond market in
Hong Kong. The steering group will be chaired by the
Financial Secretary, comprising representatives from the
Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau (“FSTB"),
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA"), the
Securities and Futures Commission (”“SFC"), the IA
and HKEX as members. The steering group will meet
regularly to review the strategic direction of bond
market development in Hong Kong, including how best
to strengthen market infrastructure, stimulate bond
issuances in Hong Kong by public and private sector
entities, and promote Hong Kong's bond market to
foreign investors, with a view to formulating a road
map for promoting the long term and sustainable
development of the bond market.

Proposals to Advance the Development
of Hong Kong as an Offshore Renminbi
Centre (November 2013)

To further deepen the mutual capital market access
schemes and promote the collaboration and interaction
between the financial markets, pre-revenue/pre-profit
biotechnology companies listed in Hong Kong under the
new listing regime and companies listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange’s STAR Market could be included as
eligible securities under Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
upon fulfilment of certain criteria with effect from 28
December 2020 and 1 February 2021 respectively.
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(4)

(5)

Developing Hong Kong as a Capital
Formation Centre for Real Estate
Investment Trusts (November 2013)

The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
("MPFA") revised its investment guidelines in May 2020
to expand the use of listed Real Estate Investment
Trust (“REITs") REITs for Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") investment purpose. The aggregate permissible
investment limit (10%) for a constituent fund of an MPF
scheme to invest in REITs no longer applies to REITs listed
on HKEX.

To attract more listing of REITs in Hong Kong, as
announced in the 2021/22 Budget, government subsidies
will be provided for qualifying REITs authorised by the
SFC and listed in Hong Kong in the coming three years.
The subsidy will cover 70% of the expenses paid to local
professional service providers for the listing of REITs,
subject to a cap of $8 million per REIT.

Proposals on Legal and Regulatory
Framework for Open-ended Investment
Companies in Hong Kong (November
2013)

To put the OFC structure on a level playing field with
other private fund structures, the SFC removed all
investment restrictions for private OFCs and allowed
licensed or registered securities brokers to act as
custodians for private OFCs through revising the Code
on Open-ended Fund Companies in September 2020.

To further enhance the competitiveness of the
OFC regime, as announced in the 2021/22 Budget,
government subsidies will be provided for OFCs set up
in or relocated to Hong Kong in the coming three years.
The subsidy will cover 70% of the expenses paid to local
professional service providers for the setting up of OFCs,
subject to a cap of $1 million per OFC.
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(6)

(9)

(1)

Furthermore, the Government announced in the 2021/22
Budget the plan to submit a legislative proposal this year
to allow foreign investment funds to re-domicile to Hong
Kong for registration as OFCs.

Synopsis Paper Proposing Tax Exemptions
and Anti-avoidance Measures on
Private Equity Funds in 2013-14 Budget
(November 2013)

The Government introduced the Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (Tax Concessions for Carried Interest) Bill
2021 into the Legislative Council on 3 February 2021
for scrutiny. The tax concession arrangement will be
applicable starting from 2020/21 year of assessment
upon completion of the legislative exercise.

Positioning Hong Kong as an International
IPO Centre of Choice (June 2014)

The Government has introduced the Securities and
Futures and Companies Legislation (Amendment)
Bill 2021 into the Legislative Council to enable the
implementation of an Uncertificated Securities Market
regime under which investors will have the option to
hold securities in their own names and without paper
documents.

Developing Hong Kong as an Offshore
RMB-denominated Reinsurance Centre
(December 2014)

In June 2020, the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission extended the preferential
treatment of lowering the capital requirement on
Mainland insurers when they cede business to qualified
Hong Kong professional reinsurers to 30 June 2021.
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(14)

(18)

Chinese Enterprises “Going Global”:
Opportunities and Hong Kong’s Policy
Responses (April 2015)

The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's
comprehensive double taxation agreement (“CDTA")
network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong Kong
has so far signed 45 CDTAs, including those signed with
Serbia and Georgia in 2020. Negotiations with more
than ten jurisdictions are underway. The Government
hopes to bring the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the
end of 2022.

A Paper on the Tax Issues on Open-
ended Fund Companies and Profits Tax
Exemption for Offshore Private Equity
Funds (December 2015)

To make Hong Kong a more attractive fund domiciliation
location, the Government introduced a limited
partnership regime for funds (such as private equity and
venture capital funds) on 31 August 2020. 173 limited
partnership funds have been registered (as at 7 April

2021).

Furthermore, the Government announced in the 2021/22
Budget the plan to submit a legislative proposal this year
to allow foreign investment funds to re-domicile to Hong
Kong for registration as limited partnership funds or
OFCs.
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(23) Hong Kong as a Regional Green Finance

Hub (May 2016)

The HKMA and the SFC initiated the establishment
of the Green and Sustainable Finance Cross-Agency
Steering Group (“Steering Group”) in May 2020. Other
members are the Environment Bureau, the FSTB, HKEX,
the IA and the MPFA. In December 2020, the Steering
Group promulgated a strategic plan which sets out
six key focus areas for strengthening Hong Kong's
financial ecosystem to support a greener and more
sustainable future in the longer term. The Government
will join hands with the financial sector and relevant
stakeholders to take forward the Strategic Plan, thereby
leveraging Hong Kong'’s role as an international financial
centre to mobilise capital towards sustainable projects
in the region and enhance Hong Kong’s position as a
green and sustainable finance hub in the region. The
Steering Group also agreed to implement five near-term
action points, including (i) climate-related disclosures
aligned with the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures recommendations will be mandatory across
relevant sectors no later than 2025; (ii) aim to adopt the
Common Ground Taxonomy, which will be developed by
mid-2021 by the International Platform on Sustainable
Finance (“IPSF”) Working Group on Taxonomies co-led by
China and the EU; (iii) support the International Financial
Reporting Standards Foundation’s proposal to establish a
new Sustainability Standards Board; (iv) promote climate-
focused scenario analysis for developing and maintaining
a global, uniform set of sustainability reporting
standards; and (v) establish a platform to coordinate
cross-sectoral capacity building, thought leadership and
as a cross-sectoral repository of green and sustainable
finance resources.



TRREBNHER

NEW DEVELOPMENTS ON FSDC'S RECOMMENDATIONS

ERZFTR20209F 12 AHEH T AT 4B R A%
BR S ([STAGE]) - AN E[EZ T
EEBANAFESRERFS - STAGE
e EARLENTE AREERGERE
HEEAMESGE EREEMAEEER
(PlanH BB ar B A 5 BT R TS R/
FRRERFYENFERSE)EBET
ARAEAFERGCREERNET
B RBEMHL2EEEXZMEHENEFG
ER2HEUBESR-

201958  BUF I BT 4% & (& 5 51 2
THRINETEHEIGECES EEER -
BAFH202152 B @A [ 2Bk
BB /TS B ITRE e
{25182 0 R E5F 8 - 10F HAFI304
HRgEEs 22t R EeEE AT
GEEHFMENBUTER [2EF EE
BT E BB RBITHREES
MHERRTREME TAFENE
N BESZCEFBIT AR T 2HEN
EREE - N EA2050F 2 B E R i
MO BZE BUSralCHBTaesEs
BABBHZEESTENAE WHHE
&3k _EFRA1,000188 TTRFA — 5 £2,000
BAET EBRFAARKRERFE HJE
MHBER BEITEEN,7558BLE
ENZCESF B 2BRNEREANE
HEABAGERTNERE BENE
BBTHORN (RESEZSEESF)M
RE E—SLUEEREHKONAFHES
REAYAERE o

BT & E A M2018FH M [E 5L B
FEBEHBMIGEBESFEYAE] B
(e REsREsTEll &Ba
BERHNEFZETAMERANEES L
MO ERE NE—FHEMNBE
ERTEERETABERERRE-
EIBA2021FE5 AL A=

HKEX launched the Sustainable and Green Exchange
("STAGE") in December 2020 as Asia‘s first multi-asset
sustainable investment product platform. STAGE is an
online portal providing investors with easy access and
transparency on ESG information, helping issuers build
awareness of their sustainable and green investment
products through the disclosure of relevant information
(e.g. annual post-issuance report on the use of proceeds
and impact of green bonds), and fostering market
participants’ knowledge sharing and stakeholder
engagement in sustainable finance.

Building on the successful issuance of the inaugural
green bond in May 2019 under the Government Green
Bond Programme (“GGBP"), the Government issued a
further US$2.5 billion of green bonds, comprising 5-year,
10-year and 30-year tranches in February 2021 under
a newly established and the world’s first government
“Global Medium Term Note Programme” dedicated to
green bond issuance. Through green bond issuances,
the Government has demonstrated best practice to the
market and established a comprehensive benchmark yield
curve for potential green bond issuers in Hong Kong
and the region. Having regard to the goal of achieving
carbon neutrality before 2050, the Government plans to
issue green bonds regularly and expand the scale of the
GGBP by doubling its borrowing ceiling from HK$100
billion to HK$200 billion to allow for further issuance of
green bonds totalling HK$175.5 billion within the next
five years, having regard to the market situation. This
will provide more room for piloting the issuance of green
bonds that involves more types of currencies, project
types, issuance format (including retail green bonds)
and channels, thereby further enriching the green and
sustainable finance ecosystem in Hong Kong.

The Pilot Bond Grant Scheme and the Green Bond Grant
Scheme, rolled out by the Government in 2018, will be
consolidated into a Green and Sustainable Finance Grant
Scheme to provide subsidy for eligible bond issuers and
loan borrowers to cover their expenses on bond issuance
and external review services to promote the use of the
Hong Kong platform for green and sustainable financing
and certification. The Scheme will commence in May
2021 and last for three years.
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(25) The 13th Five-Year Plan: Opportunities

for the Hong Kong Financial Industry and
Policy Recommendations (December 2016)

To consolidate the status of the Hong Kong as a risk
management centre and insurance hub, the Government
has completed a number of legislative exercises to effect
the following measures in March 2021 -

(1) reduce profits tax rate by 50% (i.e. 8.25%) for
general reinsurance business of direct insurers,
selected general insurance business of direct
insurers and selected insurance brokerage business.
This injects impetus into the development of marine
and specialty risks insurance in Hong Kong;

(2) facilitate the setting up of special purpose
companies in Hong Kong for the issuance of
insurance-linked securities (“ILS"). This promotes
the development of the ILS market in Hong
Kong and increases the capacity of the insurance
industry; and

(3) expand the scope of insurable risks by captive
insurers set up in Hong Kong. This promotes Hong
Kong as a preferred domicile for captives formed
by state-owned enterprises from the Mainland,
multinational conglomerates and local corporates.

The IA is working on the establishment of a Specialty
Risks Consortium, complementing the Belt and Road
Insurance Exchange Facilitation platform, so as to
support Hong Kong’s role as a risk management centre
under the B&R Initiative and help divert more business
flow into Hong Kong. The Consortium pools together
specialty risk owners (e.g. Mainland enterprises with
specialty insurance needs for their B&R projects) with risk
management services providers who have the technical
expertise and overseas network to provide corresponding
risk management solutions.
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(26)

(27)

A Paper on Tax Issues Affecting Hong
Kong to Become a Preferred Location
for Regional and International Financial
Institutions to Originate and Trade
International Financial Products (December
2016)

The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's
CDTA network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong
Kong has so far signed 45 CDTAs, including those signed
with Serbia and Georgia in 2020. Negotiations with more
than ten jurisdictions are underway. The Government
hopes to bring the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the
end of 2022.

Turning Crisis into Opportunities:
Hong Kong as an Insurance Hub with
Development Focuses on Reinsurance,
Marine and Captive (March 2017)

To consolidate the status of the Hong Kong as a risk
management centre and insurance hub, the Government
has completed a number of legislative exercises to effect
the following measures in March 2021 -

(1) reduce profits tax rate by 50% (i.e. 8.25%) for
general reinsurance business of direct insurers,
selected general insurance business of direct
insurers and selected insurance brokerage business.
This injects impetus into the development of marine
and specialty risks insurance in Hong Kong;

(2) facilitate the setting up of special purpose
companies in Hong Kong for the issuance of ILS.
This promotes the development of the ILS market
in Hong Kong and increases the capacity of the
insurance industry; and

(3) expand the scope of insurable risks by captive
insurers set up in Hong Kong. This promotes Hong
Kong as a preferred domicile for captives formed
by state-owned enterprises from the Mainland,
multinational conglomerates and local corporates.
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(29) The Future of FinTech in Hong Kong (May
2017)

- As an international financial centre, Hong Kong is an
ideal place for FinTech business to grow. The Government
attaches great importance to the development of
FinTech, and works closely with relevant financial
regulators and the industry to advance the development
of FinTech sector through a variety of measures. Major
work include:

o Promoting Hong Kong’s Advantages in FinTech
The dedicated FinTech team in InvestHK continues
the promotion of Hong Kong's advantages in
FinTech and attracting FinTech companies and
talents from other places to come to Hong Kong.
For instance, the annual flagship event Hong Kong
FinTech Week was held virtually in November
2020 which had drawn over 1.2 million viewers
from over 130 economies, and seen over 18,000
business contacts made.

In addition, the HKMA will collaborate with
the Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks
Corporation and Cyberport to attract more
financial, technology or research institutes to set up
laboratories in Hong Kong, with a focus on areas
such as regulatory technology and cyber security,
where Hong Kong enjoys clearest advantages. The
HKMA is formulating the related strategies with
stakeholders for timely implementation.
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Refining the Regulatory Regime to Facilitate
the Sector’s Development

The HKMA, the SFC and the IA have established
their FinTech regulatory sandbox to allow
financial institutions and FinTech companies to
test new FinTech products and solutions in a
secured regulatory environment with well-defined
parameters, as well as to gather data and users’
feedbacks, thereby expediting the development
process, lowering cost and enhancing product
quality. Currently, 8 virtual banks, 4 virtual insurers
and 1 virtual asset trading platform have been
granted with relevant licences and authorization to
provide innovative financial services in Hong Kong.
To foster the development of more novel financial
products, the HKMA is considering enhancing its
sandbox by providing “through-train” vetting and
funding arrangements for those promising FinTech
solutions to reduce the time for the launch of
innovative financial products in the market.

Furthermore, the HKMA had set out a two-year
plan to promote regulatory technology adoption
by the banking sector, and in its whitepaper
published in November 2020 — Transforming Risk
Management and Compliance: Harnessing the
Power of Regtech, 16 recommendations have been
put forth to drive banks in adopting technology
to enhance and fulfill their risk management and
compliance requirements, with a view to assisting
banks to cope with the ever-changing operation
mode and relevant regulatory measures.
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Improving FinTech Infrastructure

The usage of the Faster Payment System (“FPS")
has been growing rapidly since its launch. The
Government will continue to take forward the
work in e-Government to provide convenience to
the public, including broadening the application
of the FPS for payments of Government fees
and charges so that e-payment options will be
available for making payments in respect of most
government bills and licences starting from mid-
2022. In addition, the Government will proceed
with legislation to implement the uncertificated
securities market regime and an integrated digital
platform named eMPF to improve efficiency,
enhance user experience and lower administrative
costs.

The HKMA will continue to promote the Open
Application Programming Interface by the
banking sector to facilitate development of new
applications to aggregate information of different
banks’ products and services, so as to provide
more convenient service to customers such as
product comparisons and consolidation of financial
information, etc.
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o Providing funding to nurture FinTech talent

The Government launched the FinTech Proof-of-
Concept Subsidy Scheme, which has been opened
for application since February 2021, to encourage
financial institutions to partner with FinTech
companies to conduct proof-of-concept (“PoC"”)
projects on innovative financial services products,
and have earmarked $10 million for the scheme.
The Government entrusted Cyberport to implement
the Financial Practitioners FinTech Training
Programme in 2020. The training programme
attracted the attendance of over 1,200 financial
practitioners from the banking, insurance and
securities sectors, which deepened their FinTech
understanding, as well as promoted the adoption
of FinTech in financial services.

The IA authorised the third and fourth virtual insurers
under Fast Track in April and May 2020 respectively, both
of them operate solely digital distribution channels to
carry on insurance business.
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(30) Hong Kong - Building Trust Using

Distributed Ledger Technology (May 2017)

eTradeConnect is a blockchain-based trade finance
platform officially launched in October 2018 under
the facilitation of the HKMA. It is fully funded by a
consortium of 12 major banks in Hong Kong. With the
goal of providing importers and exporters with more
convenient trade finance services, a PoC study was
initiated to explore connecting eTradeConnect and the
People’s Bank of China (“PBoC") Trade Finance Platform.
The first phase of the PoC study was completed in
October 2020. A pilot run was subsequently launched.
Banks in Hong Kong and the Mainland have used
the connection to execute cross-border trade finance
transactions. Phase 2 of the PoC study, covering more
types of trade activities and financing products, began in
December 2020.

To facilitate small and medium enterprises financing,
the HKMA initiated a PoC study in collaboration with
banks to examine the technical feasibility of building the
Commercial Data Interchange (“CDI"), a consent-based
financial infrastructure that would enable more secure
and efficient data flow between banks and commercial
data owners. With the CDI, small and medium-sized
enterprises can use their own data to enhance their
access to financial services.
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(31)

(32)

Recommendations for Developing Hong
Kong as an Aircraft Leasing and Financing
Hub (July 2017)

The dedicated tax regime for aircraft leasing activities in
Hong Kong introduced by the Government in July 2017
has been well-received by the global aircraft leasing and
financing industry. A number of major industry players
from the Mainland and overseas have set up their
subsidiaries/operating arm in Hong Kong including three
of the top ten aircraft leasing companies in the world.
According to industry feedback, aircraft leasing deals of
over 80 aircraft and parts have been made on the Hong
Kong platform so far, involving lessors/lessees around
the world (including the Mainland, Chile, Cambodia,
Indonesia, Japan, South Korea, Malaysia, Qatar and
Vietnam).

The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's
CDTA network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong
Kong has so far signed 45 CDTAs, including those signed
with Serbia and Georgia in 2020. Negotiations with more
than ten jurisdictions are underway. The Government
hopes to bring the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the
end of 2022.

Proposals to Extend Offshore Private
Equity Fund Tax Exemption to Hong Kong
Businesses (July 2017)

The Government introduced the Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (Tax Concessions for Carried Interest) Bill
2021 into the Legislative Council on 3 February 2021
for scrutiny. The tax concession arrangement will be
applicable starting from 2020/21 year of assessment
upon completion of the legislative exercise.
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(34) Maritime Leasing Paper (May 2018)

The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (Ship Leasing Tax
Concessions) Ordinance 2020 was enacted in June 2020
to provide tax exemption and generally half profits
tax rate for qualifying ship leasing and ship leasing
management activities respectively, with retrospective
effect from 1 April 2020.

A dedicated Task Force on Commercial Principals has
been formed under the Hong Kong Maritime Port
Board to study and devise the details of introducing tax
measures to attract more shipping commercial principals
to choose Hong Kong as their base of operation. The
Task Force is examining the economic impacts and
details of the tax concession proposals, with a view to
drawing up the legislative framework for introducing tax
concessions for shipping commercial principals (such as
ship managers, agents and brokers).

The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's
CDTA network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong
Kong has so far signed 45 CDTAs, including those signed
with Serbia and Georgia in 2020. Negotiations with more
than ten jurisdictions are underway. The Government
hopes to bring the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the
end of 2022.
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(35)

(36)

Building the Technological and Regulatory
Infrastructure of a 21st Century
International Financial Centre: Digital ID
and KYC Utilities for Financial Inclusion,
Integrity and Competitiveness (June 2018)

The Office of the Government Chief Information Officer
launched "“iAM Smart” in December 2020 providing all
Hong Kong residents with a single digital identity and
authentication to conduct government and commercial
transactions online.

The HKMA, the MPFA, the IA and the SFC issued a
circular to their regulatees respectively in December
2020 to encourage them to actively consider adopting
iAM Smart in their business. Financial institutions are
now considering the adoption of “iAM Smart” in their
services including remote account opening, account log-
in, online document signing and submission etc.

Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) Strategy for Hong Kong (November
2018)

In the past year, the MPFA continued to communicate
with MPF trustees and their investment managers on
the global trend and market development in green and
sustainable finance.

In July 2020, the MPFA conducted a survey on the views
and current practices of MPF trustees on how and to
what extent MPF trustees and their investment managers
integrate ESG factors into their investment and risk
management processes and disclosure of the integration
to scheme members. In the light of the survey results,
the MPFA considers that there is a need to support
capacity building and training of MPF trustees on
sustainable investing and to raise MPF scheme members’
awareness of sustainable investing.

In March 2021, the MPFA set up a working group with
MPF trustees to discuss the roles of MPF trustees and
investment managers in ESG integration and disclosure
and the proposed implementation approach.
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On product development, the MPFA approved in
November 2020 the first ESG-themed index-tracking
collective investment scheme tracking the performance of
the top 50 securities with the highest ESG scores among
constituent securities of the Hang Seng Composite Index.

The HKMA and the SFC initiated the establishment
of the Steering Group in May 2020. Other members
are the Environment Bureau, the FSTB, HKEX, the IA
and the MPFA. In December 2020, the Steering Group
promulgated a Strategic Plan which sets out six key focus
areas for strengthening Hong Kong's financial ecosystem
to support a greener and more sustainable future in the
longer term. The Government will join hands with the
financial sector and relevant stakeholders to take forward
the Strategic Plan, thereby leveraging Hong Kong's role
as an international financial centre to mobilise capital
towards sustainable projects in the region and enhance
Hong Kong's position as a green and sustainable finance
hub in the region. The Steering Group also agreed to
implement five near-term action points, including (i)
climate-related disclosures aligned with the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures recommendations
will be mandatory across relevant sectors no later than
2025; (ii) aim to adopt the Common Ground Taxonomy,
which will be developed by mid-2021 by the IPSF
Working Group on Taxonomies co-led by China and the
EU; (iii) support the International Financial Reporting
Standards Foundation’s proposal to establish a new
Sustainability Standards Board; (iv) promote climate-
focused scenario analysis for developing and maintaining
a global, uniform set of sustainability reporting
standards; and (v) establish a platform to coordinate
cross-sectoral capacity building, thought leadership and
as a cross-sectoral repository of green and sustainable
finance resources.
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HKEX launched STAGE in December 2020 as Asia’s first
multi-asset sustainable investment product platform.
STAGE is an online portal providing investors with easy
access and transparency on ESG information, helping
issuers build awareness of their sustainable and green
investment products through the disclosure of relevant
information (e.g., annual post-issuance report on the use
of proceeds and impact of green bonds), and fostering
market participants’ knowledge sharing and stakeholder
engagement in sustainable finance.

Building on the successful issuance of the inaugural
green bond in May 2019 under the GGBP, the
Government issued a further US$2.5 billion of green
bonds, comprising 5-year, 10-year and 30-year tranches
in February 2021 under a newly established and the
world’s first government “Global Medium Term Note
Programme” dedicated to green bond issuance. Through
green bond issuances, the Government has demonstrated
best practice to the market and established a
comprehensive benchmark yield curve for potential green
bond issuers in Hong Kong and the region. Having regard
to the goal of achieving carbon neutrality before 2050,
the Government plans to issue green bonds regularly and
expand the scale of the GGBP by doubling its borrowing
ceiling from HK$100 billion to HK$200 billion to allow
for further issuance of green bonds totalling HK$175.5
billion within the next five years, having regard to the
market situation. This will provide more room for piloting
the issuance of green bonds that involves more types of
currencies, project types, issuance format (including retail
green bonds) and channels, thereby further enriching the
green and sustainable finance ecosystem in Hong Kong.
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(37)

The Pilot Bond Grant Scheme and the Green Bond Grant
Scheme, rolled out by the Government in 2018, will be
consolidated into a Green and Sustainable Finance Grant
Scheme to provide subsidy for eligible bond issuers and
loan borrowers to cover their expenses on bond issuance
and external review services to promote the use of the
Hong Kong platform for green and sustainable financing
and certification. The Scheme will commence in May
2021 and last for three years.

Enhancing Hong Kong’s Role as a Leading
Life Insurance Centre (December 2018)

The 1A is actively discussing the implementation
details with the Mainland authorities to strive for early
establishment of after-sales service centres by Hong Kong
insurance industry in the Mainland cities of the GBA, so
that comprehensive support in different areas including
enquiries, claims and renewal of policies can be provided
to Hong Kong, Macao and Mainland residents who are
holders of insurance policies issued in Hong Kong.

To speed up adoption of Insurtech and prevent the
risk of infection amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, the IA
has rolled out temporary facilitative measures so that
designated protective long term insurance products could
be sold without the need for face-to-face interactions
until 30 June 2021.

The IA has worked closely with the Hong Kong
Federation of Insurers to launch a virtual onboarding
platform in September 2020 to facilitate the non-face-to-
face distribution of life insurance products through video
conferencing tools, particularly for small and medium
insurers which may not have sufficient resources to
develop their own platform, and also spare insurers from
technical vetting when applying for pilot trials under the
Insurtech Sandbox.
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(38)

The Government will continue to expand Hong Kong's
CDTA network as a business facilitation initiative. Hong
Kong has so far signed 45 CDTAs, including those signed
with Serbia and Georgia in 2020. Negotiations with more
than ten jurisdictions are underway. The Government
hopes to bring the total number of CDTAs to 50 by the
end of 2022.

Mandatory Provident Fund System - The
Way Forward (February 2019)

eMPF Platform

Since 2017, the Government and the MPFA have been
working on the eMPF Platform project to facilitate
standardization, streamlining and automation of MPF
scheme administration processes to maximize operational
efficiency so as to make room for fee reduction, and
to create a predominantly paperless MPF experience.
The MPFA awarded PCCW Solutions Limited with the
contract for design, build and operation of the eMPF
Platform in late January 2021. In addition, the MPFA's
wholly-owned subsidiary (i.e. eMPF Platform Company)
was incorporated in early March 2021 to take forward
the eMPF Platform project. The target is to have the
eMPF Platform ready by end-2022 at the earliest and the
on-boarding to the eMPF Platform by all MPF trustees by
phases thereafter.
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The MPF Schemes Ordinance

The Government and the MPFA are now working at full
steam on the second-phase legislative amendments to
the MPF Schemes Ordinance, which aim to pave the
way for the launch and smooth operation of the eMPF
Platform by providing a legal basis for the designation
of the eMPF Platform as the common platform for
scheme administration processes in the MPF System, and
delineating the respective roles, functions, powers and
responsibilities of the Government, the MPFA, the eMPF
Platform Company and trustees. The amendments will
also reflect the streamlined MPF scheme administration
work flow and reduced regulatory burden on trustees as
a result of the implementation of eMPF Platform.

Digital Transformation

A territory-wide publicity campaign targeting MPF
scheme members was conducted in September-
November 2020 to highlight the benefits of using
digital tools and services offered by MPF trustees and
the MPFA for MPF account management. Publicity
programmes included Announcements in the Public
Interest (“APIs”) on TV and radio, an “all-in-one virtual
hub” for MPF account management in the format of a
thematic website, as well as various online and offline
publicity. Joint publicity with Environmental Protection
Department’s mascot “Big Waster” was arranged to
promote the messages of “GREEN MPF”. Broadcasting
of the APIs would continue in 2021 on all local TV and
radio channels.
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Increasing the Level of MPF Contributions

(41)

In March 2021,
information paper to the LegCo Panel on Financial Affairs

the Government submitted an

reporting the result of the latest statutory review by the
MPFA on the minimum and maximum levels of relevant
income for the four-year cycle of 2014 to 2018. Taking
into account the relevant social and economic factors,
the Government decided to maintain the status quo for
the relevant income levels. The MPFA will conduct the
next statutory review (for the four year cycle of 2018-
2022) and make recommendation to the Government on
the adjustment to the two levels by July 2022.

The introduction of tax-deductible voluntary
contributions (“TVC") from the 2019/20 year of
assessment has seen MPF scheme members making
contributions of over $3.1 billion under the arrangement
from April 2019 to February 2021,
their retirement reserves. As at 28 February 2021,

adding further to
there
were over 47,000 TVC accounts.

Insuring Hong Kong’s Future - Tax
Recommendations to Enhance and Grow
Hong Kong’s Insurance Industry (March
2020)

To increase the competitiveness of the Hong Kong
insurance industry, the Government has completed a
legislative exercise to provide 50% profits tax concessions
for all general reinsurance business of direct insurers,
selected general insurance business of direct insurers
and selected insurance brokerage business. The tax
concessions which came into effect in March 2021, inject
impetus into the development of marine and specialty
risks insurance in Hong Kong.
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(42)

The Government has offered tax concessions since April
2019 to encourage members of the public to save for
their retirement. From the 2019/20 year of assessment
onwards, taxpayers are entitled to tax deductions under
salaries tax and personal assessment for their premiums
paid to qualifying deferred annuities ("QDAP”) and
contributions made to tax deductible MPF voluntary
contribution accounts, subject to a maximum tax
deductible limit of $60,000 each year per taxpayer. As
at February 2021, 23 QDAP are offered by 19 insurers.
Some 170,000 policies have been issued, which
generated over HK$12.1 billion of total annualized
premiums.

Enhancing Hong Kong’s Status as
Offshore RMB Business Hub through the
Development of the RMB Asset Market
(May 2020)

The Financial Secretary has announced in the 2021/22
Budget that the Government will enhance the efficiency
and capacity of the domestic Central Moneymarkets
Unit ("CMU") and introduce new functions to support
the future commissioning of Southbound Trading of
Bond Connect, with a view to providing a risk-controlled
channel for Mainland investors to participate in the local
and overseas bond markets. The Government will also
develop the CMU as a major central securities depository
platform in Asia and in the world in the long-run.

The Government has completed a legislative exercise to
facilitate the setting up of special purpose companies in
Hong Kong for the issuance of ILS. The new regulatory
framework which came into effect in March 2021
promotes the development of the ILS market in Hong
Kong and increases the capacity of the insurance
industry.

The Financial Secretary announced the Pilot Insurance-
linked Securities Grant Scheme in the 2021/22 Budget.
Together with the new regulatory regime launched in
March 2021, it will pave way for Hong Kong to become
the preferred domicile for ILS.
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(43) Hong Kong's Unique Role in Enhancing

Financial Connectivity in the Greater Bay
Area (June 2020)

The 1A is actively discussing the implementation
details with the Mainland authorities to strive for early
establishment of after-sales service centres by Hong Kong
insurance industry in the Mainland cities of the GBA, so
that comprehensive support in different areas including
enquiries, claims and renewal of policies can be provided
to Hong Kong, Macao and Mainland residents who are
holders of insurance policies issued in Hong Kong. The
IA is also striving for the early implementation of the
“unilateral recognition” policy for Hong Kong vehicles
entering Guangdong through the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge, so that the third-party insurance policies
issued in Hong Kong can be deemed as equivalent to
the mandatory traffic accident liability insurance in the
Mainland.

The Guangdong government announced in July 2020
that they would steadily promote the business of opening
Mainland Type Il and lll personal accounts remotely by
attestation for Hong Kong and Macao residents under
the guidance of the PBoC by gradually expanding the
scope of pilot banks and areas. The HKMA will continue
to follow up with the PBoC.

The Department of Natural Resources of Guangdong
Province released a notice in August 2020 regarding real
estate mortgage registration in the nine Mainland GBA
cities by banks in Hong Kong and Macao, which states
clearly that banks in Hong Kong and Macao can offer
cross-boundary mortgage services and standardises the
procedures for banks to make registration for mortgage
in the nine Mainland GBA cities, providing a basis for
Hong Kong banks to develop their cross-boundary
mortgage business.
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The PBoC, the HKMA and the Monetary Authority of
Macao jointly announced in June 2020 the decision
to implement the two-way cross-boundary wealth
management connect pilot scheme (Wealth Management
Connect) to allow residents in Hong Kong, Macao and
nine Mainland cities of the GBA to carry out cross-
boundary investment in wealth management products
distributed by banks in the area.

It is planned that for northbound and southbound,
there will be an aggregate quota of RMB150 billion in
each direction and an individual investor quota of RMB1
million.

It was announced in February 2021 that the regulators
of the three places have signed a Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU") on the principles of supervisory
cooperation under Wealth Management Connect,
establishing sound supervisory cooperation arrangements
and liaison mechanism.

The HKMA will continue to work with the relevant
authorities to step up the preparation for Wealth
Management Connect with a view to expediting the
implementation of the scheme.
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(44) Hong Kong - Developing into the Global

ESG Investment Hub of Asia (July 2020)

The HKMA and the SFC initiated the establishment
of the Steering Group in May 2020. Other members
are the Environment Bureau, the FSTB, HKEX, the IA
and the MPFA. In December 2020, the Steering Group
promulgated a Strategic Plan which sets out six key focus
areas for strengthening Hong Kong’s financial ecosystem
to support a greener and more sustainable future in the
longer term. The Government will join hands with the
financial sector and relevant stakeholders to take forward
the Strategic Plan, thereby leveraging Hong Kong’s role
as an international financial centre to mobilise capital
towards sustainable projects in the region and enhance
Hong Kong's position as a green and sustainable finance
hub in the region. The Steering Group also agreed to
implement five near-term action points, including (i)
climate-related disclosures aligned with the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures recommendations
will be mandatory across relevant sectors no later than
2025; (ii) aim to adopt the Common Ground Taxonomy,
which will be developed by mid-2021 by the IPSF
Working Group on Taxonomies co-led by China and the
EU; (iii) support the International Financial Reporting
Standards Foundation’s proposal to establish a new
Sustainability Standards Board; (iv) promote climate-
focused scenario analysis for developing and maintaining
a global, uniform set of sustainability reporting
standards; and (v) establish a platform to coordinate
cross-sectoral capacity building, thought leadership and
as a cross-sectoral repository of green and sustainable
finance resources.
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HKEX launched STAGE in December 2020 as Asia’s first
multi-asset sustainable investment product platform.
STAGE is an online portal providing investors with easy
access and transparency on ESG information, helping
issuers build awareness of their sustainable and green
investment products through the disclosure of relevant
information (e.g. annual post-issuance report on the use
of proceeds and impact of green bonds), and fostering
market participants’ knowledge sharing and stakeholder
engagement in sustainable finance.

Building on the successful issuance of the inaugural
green bond in May 2019 under the GGBP, the
Government issued a further US$2.5 billion of green
bonds, comprising 5-year, 10-year and 30-year tranches
in February 2021 under a newly established and the
world’s first government “Global Medium Term Note
Programme” dedicated to green bond issuance. Through
green bond issuances, the Government has demonstrated
best practice to the market and established a
comprehensive benchmark yield curve for potential green
bond issuers in Hong Kong and the region. Having regard
to the goal of achieving carbon neutrality before 2050,
the Government plans to issue green bonds regularly and
expand the scale of the GGBP by doubling its borrowing
ceiling from HK$100 billion to HK$200 billion to allow
for further issuance of green bonds totalling HK$175.5
billion within the next five years, having regard to the
market situation. This will provide more room for piloting
the issuance of green bonds that involves more types of
currencies, project types, issuance format (including retail
green bonds) and channels, thereby further enriching the
green and sustainable finance ecosystem in Hong Kong.
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The Pilot Bond Grant Scheme and the Green Bond Grant
Scheme, rolled out by the Government in 2018, will be
consolidated into a Green and Sustainable Finance Grant
Scheme to provide subsidy for eligible bond issuers and
loan borrowers to cover their expenses on bond issuance
and external review services to promote the use of the
Hong Kong platform for green and sustainable financing
and certification. The Scheme will commence in May
2021 and last for three years.

Family Wisdom: A Family Office Hub in
Hong Kong (July 2020)

It was announced in the 2020 Policy Address that
InvestHK will set up a dedicated team to step up
promotion of Hong Kong's advantages in local and
other major markets, and offer one-stop support services
to family offices which are interested in establishing a
presence in Hong Kong.

ANNUAL REPORT £} 2020/21 63



BB

INDUSTRY OUTREACH

TEBE D INGES RS RFDERNBER The FSDC strives to broaden its industry engagement beyond
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EBE—FN KBHINESHAZBEBE from the Mainland and overseas. During the year, most of

BARET - REEREEPWRENEZ the outreach meetings were conducted virtually. The views

MER BHSERHFTEBKRFEEZF and opinions gathered from these industry engagements

BTG HEEARAS ERAEANIE. helped formulate FSDC's policy research priorities and market
promotion as well as talent development initiatives.
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23 A% Calendar of Meetings

2020/ 21 FEBERNEFINREH BRI

Industry outreach activities organised in 2020/21 included:

7.4.2020

8.4.2020

8.6.2020

23.6.2020

9.7.2020

22.7.2020

23.7.2020

3.8.2020

10.8.2020

11.8.2020

11.8.2020

12.8.2020

12.8.2020

13.8.2020

14.8.2020

EREERLERERS

Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association
ERELTATEE

The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
COPEIRIRITAE B FTH D

CDP Worldwide

LR EERESE

Consulate General of Belgium in Hong Kong
DNBLEEERTHHE

Asia Securities Industry & Financial Markets Association
I

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
TAFEMEHE

Asia Pacific Real Estate Association
ERRITNELRS

The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
EEERMERER

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

EEREEE NS

Hong Kong Investment Funds Association
REMEE

InvestHK

EERENAGS

The Investment Company Institute

FETe oM G S

CFA Institute

ERELTRAAEE

The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
EERBHFEREERS

Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
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18.8.2020 ERRTES

The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
19.8.2020 ERESHERRE

Hong Kong Trade Development Council
20.8.2020 RBEEER

Insurance Authority
20.8.2020 FETRMRHE

FinTech Association of Hong Kong
24.8.2020 FRHEEE

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
24.8.2020 EEEEE

The British Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong
27.8.2020 TEMNERB A

Institute of Financial Technologists of Asia
1.9.2020 BREATSHBE

The International Capital Market Association
18.9.2020 EERETRHE

Hong Kong Green Finance Association
6.10.2020 BEXES

Construction Industry Council
7.10.2020 SHEREEEDS

The Alternative Investment Management Association
13.10.2020 TNEFXBESRT SRS

Asia Securities Industry & Financial Markets Association
22.10.2020 FEEEEE

The American Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong
22.10.2020 BRI BRI E R

European Union Office to Hong Kong and Macao

18.11.2020 PR ARRTT
The People’s Bank of China

20.11.2020 hE ARRTT
The People’s Bank of China

7.12.2020 HEmERER
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
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22.12.2020 EEREREE NS
Hong Kong Investment Funds Association
EEBHFERERS
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
5.1.2021 BIFR A ma B AR
International Corporate Governance Network

27.1.2021 Gl

Hong Kong Academy of Finance
4.2.2021 IWAMBERRSE

Private Wealth Management Association
9.2.2021 EEETRMERER

Hong Kong Monetary Authority
1.3.2021 BN EEBEREZES

Securities and Futures Commission

ANNUAL REPORT £} 2020/21 67



™ 35 =

MARKET PROMOTION

HAX2019ERERRBENTE EB
%%ﬁ@%tﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁxﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ&
BB ™mS LR

FR BMERS2EZBRNMEETE 25
E_”_Vﬁw‘ ‘JH BB FED
MMXBASEH LERIRRDB -2 ER/N

EMERAZEEIZNEREDHLET &
& %&%f%%%??iAméﬁﬁE*
R B E B A I M AR B DA Ko BB AR
ELRBENBFRE-

Ay *A
AA IJHH

BREBREUR @EREERR  FAREHE
BEENCRRGE HHEELERI2ER
EARKRIINEEA@ALFARNE R F
NEEMNTEZE-RMTBBL2NZEE
BORE fln@m TP BI30pR A T RIS
(TU30]) - City Week 2020:%18 - 52988 (&
KemP OB REENE HEEEASS
ERHaTE - ENERy R A LM e REm
BRI AL A B w1l - AP A B A TE R
REHEAZHHNEZREIR

RERES—RONESSERWUETTEH

ERESERNEREENHINE EARE
st R ek iR IS 1B

68 ANNUAL REPORT 4%} 2020/21

Despite the disruption caused by COVID-19, the FSDC
expanded its market promotion efforts globally through
webinars and social media.

The FSDC actively participated in events and hosted flagship
discussion panels at The Belt and Road Summit, the Asian
Financial Forum and Hong Kong Fintech Week. Representatives
also spoke at the leading events including the SFC Compliance
Forum, the IA Asian Insurance Forum and the Hong Kong
Green Finance Association annual forum.

In a swift response to the pandemic, the FSDC shifted
promotional activities to the virtual space with the launch of
the FSDC Industry Exchange Series. The FSDC also embraced
virtual events, reaching audiences around the world with the
Forbes Under 30 Summit China (“U30"), City Week 2020,
the launch of Global Financial Centres Index 29, Sir John
Templeton Investment Roundtable 2020, a business community
webinar in Indonesia and the Private Wealth Asia Forum in
Singapore.

The FSDC also revamped its website, enhancing the user
experience in an increasingly connected world, with more
sophisticated functionalities and an updated, improved design.
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Promotional Events

Flagship Events

FSDC Industry Exchange Webinar Series

To further encourage industry dialogues, the FSDC Industry
Exchange Series was launched on 10 November 2020 with
the inaugural webinar titled “Mirror, Mirror on the Wall, is
Hong Kong a Private Funds Domicile for All?”. Distinguished
speakers shared valuable insights on the latest developments
and opportunities arising from enhanced regulation of private
funds. The second webinar titled “Make an IMPACT!" was
held on 9 December 2020. Industry experts shed light on
making an impact for a better future through responsible
investing. The third webinar, “The Rise of Digital Currencies
and Payment Methods” was organised on 26 March 2021,
with speakers sharing the implications of digital currencies and
discussing opportunities and challenges for financial markets.
The three events together were well attended by more than
950 participants.
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Belt and Road Summit

FSDC joined hands with the Hong Kong Association of Banks
once again to host a panel discussion at the Summit on 1
December 2020 with sustainability as the main focus. In his
welcome remarks, the FSDC Executive Director Dr King Au
pointed out that Hong Kong was well-positioned to serve
and promote the robust and sustainable growth of the
B&R Initiative projects, given that the city was committed
to becoming a regional green finance hub. Other speakers
including Ms Diana Cesar, Mr Peter Burnett, Mr Leiming Chen,
Mr Jonathan Drew and Ms Ding Chen highlighted Hong
Kong's distinctive strengths as a financial hub for the B&R
Initiative from asset management and FinTech perspectives.

N
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Asian Financial Forum

The FSDC hosted a virtual panel session at the Asian
Financial Forum: “The Evolving Central Bank Digital Currency
Landscape” on 18 January 2021. Speakers including Mr Joseph
Chan, Under Secretary for the FSTB, Mr Henri Arslanian,
Prof Shusong Ba and Ms Benedicte Nolens discussed CBDC's
potential applications and the related global trends, the
challenges of rolling out cross-border CBDC projects and how
Hong Kong's FinTech ecosystem could support digital currency
development and re-affirmed the need of joint efforts by the
Government and private sectors in driving further progress.
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The FSDC also moderated the “Meetup with Hong Kong
Regulators” session, joined by representatives from the IA, the
SFC, the HKMA and the MPFA. They shared how technology
affected the role of the regulators and how industry players
were coping with risks arising from technology adoption, such
as cybersecurity and data privacy.

\
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Hong Kong FinTech Week

The FSDC joined Hong Kong FinTech Week again as a FinTech
Partner by hosting two sessions on 3 November 2020. At
the FSDC workshop entitled “Hong Kong: All You Need for
FinTech”, Mr Joseph Chan stated that the joint efforts of the
industry and the Government had gained momentum, with
over 600 FinTech firms and start-ups operating locally in Hong
Kong. Dr King Au introduced the FSDC's upcoming research
and market outreach work, aiming to advance the overall
FinTech ecosystem in Hong Kong.

At another FSDC session named “Developments of Central
FinTech
professionals Mr James Lloyd, Mr Vincent Lau and moderator
Ms Helene Li discussed the key drivers behind the CBDC
development and how it was going to revolutionise the

Bank Digital Currencies Globally and in China”,

landscape of the financial services industry. They demonstrated
that Hong Kong, as an international financial centre with a
close relationship with the Mainland, had huge potential to be
a leader in the region.
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SFC Compliance Forum

In October 2020, Dr King Au spoke at the “Family Offices and
Private Wealth Management” panel of the SFC's Compliance
Forum. He explained how family offices would be considered
as a growth engine for the financial services industry in Hong
Kong. He also shared the city’s comparative advantages for
family office operation, especially in terms of location and

talent pool.

Asian Insurance Forum

The FSDC again joined the Asian Insurance Forum, an annual
in December 2020. At the panel
“A Sustainable Future through Financial
, moderated by the FSDC
Chairman Mr Laurence Li, speakers shared their insights on

flagship event of the IA,
discussion entitled,
Connectivity in the Greater Bay Area”

how Hong Kong's insurance and financial service sectors could
seize opportunities arising from the GBA's development. They
believed sectors with more financial connectivity within the
GBA had a competitive edge.

\
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HKGFA Annual Forum

In November 2020, Dr King Au spoke on “Financing Green
Recovery” at the Hong Kong Green Finance Association
Annual Forum. He pointed out that a concerted effort from
different stakeholders, particularly with support from the
private sector, would be critical for developing Hong Kong
into a solid ESG investment hub in the region. He hailed the
Mainland for pledging carbon neutrality by 2060 to help lower
global warming projections. He added that Hong Kong, as
an international financial centre, had a critical role to play
in meeting the financing needs of carbon neutral projects,
stressing that the FSDC would continue to work closely with
the industry on talent development to nurture more ESG
professionals.

N
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Events Dedicated to Overseas Markets

Despite travel barriers, the FSDC had been able to reach the
target audiences in Europe, North America and in Asia to
update on latest developments and opportunities presented by
the financial markets in Hong Kong.

Forbes Under 30 Summit China in Shanghai

The FSDC joined hands with InvestHK to co-sponsor U30
in Shanghai on 20 and 21 January 2021, in a bid to help
promote Hong Kong’'s financial services to young Mainland

entrepreneurs.

A\

Mr Christopher Hui, Secretary for the FSTB, delivered a
keynote speech on the advantages that consolidated Hong
Kong's position as a private equity fund hub and preferred
option for family offices’ operation. Mr Laurence Li invited
the U30 participants to establish a business presence in Hong
Kong, taking advantages of the world class financial services
among other strengths. Besides, Dr King Au spoke at the
FSDC-led webinar “Think Finance Think Hong Kong” and shed
light on the dual role that Hong Kong played as a fund-raising
platform and an investment gateway.

\
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R City WeekiRE & 5295 (2 E&m+
DIEE) BHTAE
CEBNEFHRLNMT B HE B HCity
Weekz® 18 * A 5B2980 (2 Bk & B L HEE)
B LA EUNIR & & - 15202069
A21B R City Weeki BT T8 A [t s
MEBRARFEHZECEMERE R WA LH
Hed BEREIOZEBNAERS R
WEESGEHIZ T HEEBENEEER -

MR2021F38178 FEFEEHFERERE
9 (BHRE P LIBE) MBHOELH
e UTHESSRREENRTERER
BE-EEBEITMATEBERBEES
MPLNBHEEZARKERE RS-
EMSIE g B HBIBS50A2 M.

City Week and GFCI Index Launch Webinar in London

The FSDC engaged European investors by participating in the
London-based City Week event as well as the Global Financial
Centres Index 29 Launch Webinar for the first time. At the
City Week panel entitled “Greening the Financial System
and Making Green Financial Products Mainstream” on 21
September 2020, Dr King Au shared how Hong Kong played a
prominent role in fostering the ESG agenda in the region.

On 17 March 2021, Mr Christopher Hui joined the Global
Financial Centres Index 29 Launch Webinar in London and
delivered remarks on the latest developments in Hong
Kong's financial market. Dr King Au spoke on Hong Kong's
unique role as an international financial centre as well as the
opportunities arising from the GBA. Both sessions were well-
attended, with more than 550 attendees in total.
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Sir John Templeton Investment Roundtable 2020

On 11 November 2020, Dr King Au delivered a keynote speech
to an audience including major US foundations and investors
at a roundtable organized by the John Templeton Foundation.
He pointed out that while the rest of the world was still
struggling to contain COVID-19, the Chinese economy was
well on the way to recovering from the pandemic and the
Asian market had shown significant momentum, providing
sizeable returns compared to many other major markets,
and adding that a lot of investments in Asia had been made
through Hong Kong and its Stock Connect Schemes.

Webinar for the Indonesian Business Community

On 24 March 2021, Mr Christopher Hui, Ms Diana Cesar
and Mr Simon Loong joined a webinar entitled “Resilience in
the Post-COVID Era: Indonesian Enterprises to Leverage on
Hong Kong's Leading Financial Infrastructure”. The webinar,
targeting Indonesia’s technology and other enterprises,
introduced the latest development and initiatives buttressing
Hong Kong's role as an international financial hub, the
city’s competitive edges in fintech and asset management,
opportunities arising from the development of the GBA, and
benefits that Hong Kong could offer to Indonesian enterprises
for the country’s economic development in the post-pandemic
era.

Private Wealth Asia Forum in Singapore

At the Singapore-based virtual Private Wealth Asia Forum
on 17 March 2021, Mr lvan W K Wong shared what Hong
Kong can offer for those who want to invest in new economy
firms and in ESG, and for those looking for diversification
into China. He told wealth managers, family offices and asset
managers that Hong Kong was Asia’s first and the world’s
second largest biotech fundraising hub; new economy firms
had accounted for 60% of funds raised via initial public
offering (“IPO"); and in 2019, US$10 billion worth of green
bonds were arranged and issued in Hong Kong, adding that
more exciting opportunities for asset allocation could be
expected with the introduction of the cross-boundary Wealth
Management Connect scheme.
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;% B B % Calendar of Events
2020/21 MR 2 EEFHH
Promotional events organized and participated by the FSDC in 2020/21 included:

27.4.2020 BRABE T -RAIB/LHATE
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce’s Belt and Road Series Webinar
TR CEE# : EENSRREE T —KOER
Topic: Looking Past the Crises: Financial Services in Hong Kong and the Role of the Belt and
Road
B BT RXL
B EBFRBEE
eEmEFHERL
Speakers. Ms Ding Chen, FSDC

Mr Brian Li, FSDC
Ms Winnie Wong, FSDC

1.6.2020 BREEEXHENNE
The Hong Kong Management Association’s Seminar
TR REFERK-—RBALBREBRBENTBES
Topic: Insuring Hong Kong's Future — Tax Recommendations to Enhance and Grow Hong Kong's

Insurance Industry

EE L FETFHELL
B E R E
Speakers: Ms Winnie Wong, FSDC

Mr Rex Ho, FSDC

\
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SHFHELMAEE
FSDC Webinar

ERZBEERBTNREAREMSHREY

Offshore RMB Market Development in the Global Economic Landscape
2EFR I RKL

2 HEBEEBLHIE

2HRTEEL

B MG EIRTTEESTERETLE

Ms Ding Chen, FSDC

Prof Shusong Ba, FSDC

Dr Wang Tao, FSDC

Mr Esmond Lee, Euroclear Bank Hong Kong Branch

HMBMEE [EBREERE]

Metro Finance “Hong Kong Insurance Forum”
FHEA® LA

Overcome the Adversity, Turn Crises into Opportunities
ERBFEILCEL

Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

ERAHECRRMERBES SR

Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce’s Financial and Treasury Services
Committee Meeting
ERMARBOHTREERMTSNENRNERERTRNKBIELLE  BRABEEHN
BEMEAR

How Hong Kong Can Expand its Current Asset Portfolio in Light of the Opportunities, and
Potential Challenges Brought by the Recent Reformations of China’s Financial Market and
Developments in the GBA

v#EE T RXL
TEGE—EEL
Ms Ding Chen, FSDC
Dr Rocky Tung, FSDC
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29.7.2020 ERRPLANE - XKEPLEHREDHRE LERER
FSDC Webinar - When Family Office Meets ESG

TR [REWHAE | BB IR E

Topic: Panel Discussion on Family Office

T SERE—EEL

Moderator: Dr Rocky Tung, FSDC

#E & & BG4
B (ZN)BERE ERAFRIELE
BIEELRFEEL L
RANMECELEAFFLE

Speakers: Mr Rex Ho, FSDC

Mr Ronald Lee, Goldman Sachs (Asia) LLC
Ms Helene Li, Golmpact Capital Partners

Mr Peter Stein, Private Wealth Management Association

THE: [RIR g KRES (ESG)] BB WMIRE
Topic: Panel Discussion on ESG
FF: EEBERBELL
Moderator: Ms Gloria Chan, FSDC
B EERETH B EREERL
B (L1 &R AllJames Robertsonst &
& H BB 4
2 ERRIAFELE
LFIREEIE (EE)FR LA F &L
Speakers: Ms Chaoni Huang, Hong Kong Green Finance Association

Mr James Robertson, Principles for Responsible Investment
Mr Gabriel Wilson-Otto, FSDC
Mr Pat-nie Woo, FSDC

Mr Bruno Lee, Manulife Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
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18.8.2020 AEREERRERALHANS [ EB-DE  HEEH]
Commerce and Economic Development Bureau Webinar “Riding Ups and Downs:
Hong Kong-Indonesia Partnership”

FRE: BRI AIERSE

Topic: Discovering New Partnership Opportunities

HEE SEBEEILCELE

Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

6.9.2020 TETHFERHEEEERPHNERBBESIHEE

Beijing Local Financial Supervision and Administration’s Sino-Foreign Financial
Institutions Talk

THE: VRBEATRMNBFEBNER
Topic: Foothold in Financial Services of Hong Kong and the Development of Digital Economy
#E 2 ERFREICELE
Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC
21.9.2020 City Week 2020z 3E
City Week 2020 Forum
THE: FeemBREMMEGZESRER TR
Topic: Greening the Financial System and Making Green Financial Products Mainstream
AL 2 E B RBEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
24.9.2020 ERRBEN LTS
The British Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong’s Webinar
TR R 2 AR 5 R RO Pl B R
Topic: Greater Bay Area: Challenges and Opportunities in the Financial Services Sector
#E e EEE=BEEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
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25.9.2020

B
Topic:
#BE

Speakers.

6.10.2020

-
Topic:
AL
Speaker:

8.10.2020

b=

Topic:

HEE
Speaker:

EERBEBRENP LTS

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers’ Webinar
HER RN BB E

Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (BEPS 2.0)
EEBEFHEXL

& E I FE L 4L

2 EEE=BEL

Ms Winnie Wong, FSDC

Mr Rex Ho, FSDC

Dr King Au, FSDC

ET-EERRTEEALYEETEMARARRE

The 13th HKIB Outstanding Financial Management Planner Awards Presentation
RABEBIERBBESRTPOEFINATER

People Matter in Making Hong Kong Competitive as an International Financial Centre
EERFRELCALE

Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

ERBMFEARWYPLFEREE AR EK AL K5€2020
Annual Forum of the Hong Kong Offshore RMB Business and 2020 RMB Business
Outstanding Awards

BRABTHERTEANERFARBEBKE
Opportunities of Hong Kong Offshore RMB Business Brought by Financial Development of
the GBA and Silk Road
& HEE R BEL
Dr King Au, FSDC
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HEE
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21.10.2020
FE:
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EE
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TE:
Topic:

HE
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DNESRE

FundForum Asia

FREKXEROFEYT A RERESCE OB

New Horizons for China’s Greater Bay Area: Opportunities for Local and Global Manager
e EEESBEEL

Dr King Au, FSDC

EERARTHELANS

HSBC Private Banking Webinar

EREHEELRETACRERBYHE EEBRURERAE

In Conversation with InvestHK & Financial Services Development Council: Setting up your
Family Office in Hong Kong

B EEEREEL

Dr King Au, FSDC

WIRTER
UBS Live

RGEMARERY - ZERRERAED ZH
Family Office Series — Latest Development of Family Offices in Hong Kong
2 E R RBE L

D EEE—EEL

Dr King Au, FSDC

Dr Rocky Tung, FSDC

i3S

£ % 45 T §72020
WRLDCTY Festival 2020

FRERTMNERBP ORI A

Connecting the Dots Hong Kong's Unique Role as Asia’s Financial Powerhouse
eRBELHLL

e EmESBEEL

Mr Andrew Weir, FSDC

Dr King Au, FSDC
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30.10.2020 2020 B EES S RE
SFC Compliance Forum 2020
TR Kk AEEILANEEE
Topic: Family Offices and Private Wealth Management
#BE 2 E B RBEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
30.10.2020 BEAHRRABRMEETRAMAR

1st Distinguished Insurance Planning Wealth Management Innovation (IPWMI)
Award Ceremony

= RBRFIFNER
Topic: Recent Development on Insurance Industry
B B EEEREEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
3.11.2020 BEEEMEE2020
Hong Kong FinTech Week 2020
THE: BB BAESRMEMS
Topic: Hong Kong: All you need for FinTech
B B4 F 5 R JE T /5 Bl o R B R IE
R =BEL
TEBE—EET
Speakers: Mr Joseph Chan, Under Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury

Dr King Au, FSDC
Dr Rocky Tung, FSDC

TR PREFEPRRITHEFELER
Topic: Developments of Central Bank Digital Currencies Globally and in China
e BEECHAIBBEFEELL
Moderator: Ms Helene Li, FinTech Association of Hong Kong
#E B E L BRI
BEFEEZRITERLAIGIE S L E
Speakers: Mr James Lloyd, FSDC

Mr Vincent Lau, The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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2020F B R &2 B i S WwiE

2020 Hong Kong Green Finance Association Annual Forum
EBREREER

Financing Green Recovery

ERE BB

Dr King Au, FSDC

CRBEARRRIPLANS
FSDC Industry Exchange Series Webinar

BEECELEESNIEB T M ?

Mirror, Mirror on the Wall, is HK a Private Funds Domicile for All?
e EmESBEEL

Dr King Au, FSDC

EEEHEELL

BB KEEITENEBIRAES L L
&R EMEHEL
TTREEEEREESL L

Ms Christina Choi, SFC

Mrs Florence Yip, PwC Hong Kong

Mr Jeremy Lam, FSDC

Mr Franco Ngan, Zeal Asset Management Ltd.

15 3R o RS ¥ B ESGRm 18
Hong Kong Economic Journal’s ESG Forum

REZERE
Now & Beyond
R EESBEL
Dr King Au, FSDC

ANNUAL REPORT £ 2020/21 85



5 HE R
MARKET PROMOTION

11.11.2020 BEEESSERTE2020
Sir John Templeton Investment Roundtable 2020
TR 78 H iR #) E B N8
Topic: Risks and Opportunities Facing Hong Kong
#BE e EEESBEEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
18.11.2020 ERRKRLOEHERL
Launch of Family Office Association of Hong Kong
= RRE BERERIIRGN D ZEH M E
Topic: Choice of Venue for Setting up a Family Office from an Investment Perspective
#BE e EmESBEEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
19.11.2020 EBELR s EERKESERNAHRE
The 23rd Beijing Hong Kong Economic Cooperation Symposium
= I REFRNEINABEE SRR T & E R B
Topic: How Enterprises in Beijing Should Utilise Hong Kong's Financial Services Platform to

Expand Globally

B e EEEREEL

Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC

F&E: FET BT  EEEE

Topic: Beijing Joins Hands with Hong Kong Financially to Drive Economic Recovery
#E EEBFELCEE

Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC
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ERERTFEROMAMEED AN
CFA Society Hong Kong Rebranding Ceremony

BRI AMWHEE
Global Relevance. Local Ambition
e EEESBEEL
Dr King Au, FSDC

ZEE LS
Bloomberg Webinar

EEMEARAZIMOENAHERRHES

Sustainable Opportunities for Corporations in Hong Kong and Around the World
e EmESBEEL

EEBE—EEL

Dr King Au, FSDC

Dr Rocky Tung, FSDC

B E (PE)H 220208 EmiE
International Association of CFOs and Corporate Treasurers (China) Signature
Conference 2020

EREREENMEEERME

Hong Kong as an Asset and Wealth Management Hub
DEEBE—EEL

Dr Rocky Tung, FSDC

e EmESBEEL

Dr King Au, FSDC
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1.12.2020 — - RERKETEERSRE

Belt & Road Global Forum Annual Roundtable
FRE: RESGAE RERPEABNEZEHRES
Topic: Funding for Infrastructure with Focus on ESG

Especially in Developing Economies

#E EEEESBEEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
\
1.12.2020 — % — B 5 & 182020
Belt and Road Summit 2020
= BEEERBREBRHRED [ —F K BYRAIFEERNEERET O
Topic: Hong Kong as a Capital Raising and Financing Centre to Drive Robust and Sustainable
Growth of Belt and Road Post COVID-19
FH: B EBIAE KL
Moderator: Ms Diana Cesar, FSDC
AL 2&Em I RKL
& &Rz
e EEESBEEL
Speakers: Ms Ding Chen, FSDC

Mr Leiming Chen, FSDC
Dr King Au, FSDC

1.12.2020 ER{ZEEM (SRP) FE2020
Structured Retail Products (SRP) China 2020
- BARIRE B EAARTIZHRE
Topic: Expanding Investors’ Access to the A-Share Market
FHF: PHBE—EEL
Moderator: Dr Rocky Tung, FSDC
#E S ERWKEEFELE
Speaker: Mr Mark Dickens, FSDC
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B
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2 i i

Wealth Management Connect Conference

I B R R B RS 5 R H P

Business Opportunities Arising from WMC for the Financial Services Industry

e EEESBEEL \V
Dr King Au, FSDC

B EBIARE KL
2#E T RXL

e ERELHEL

Ms Diana Cesar, FSDC

Ms Ding Chen, FSDC \
Mr Andrew Weir, FSDC

53 4R B 12020
Asian Insurance Forum 2020
B R & R G B B R B IR AT R R A R R
A Sustainable Future through Financial Connectivity in the Greater Bay Area
EEBFRELCELE
Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

EERESMABE (LT QR FEKK2020) HEE
The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional Commentators
Limited Outstanding Listed Companies Award 2020

ERHERRFRBRA LT HIE ‘\v
IPO and Listing Regime of Hong Kong

B EEESBEL

Dr King Au, FSDC
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9.12.2020 ERBEAIRRIIBLEHNE
FSDC Industry Exchange Series Webinar
TE: BIRIRE NIREREER
Topic: Make an IMPACT!
FHF: e EEESBEEL
Moderator: Dr King Au, FSDC
HE B8 E B REK D55 R EEFSE L

RS GroupZ fic 2 1
FEFE T R EF S Maud Savary-Mornet % 1
1Z % 2 Michael Salvaticost 4
Speakers: Mr Joseph Chan, Under Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
Ms Ronie Mak, RS Group Asia
Ms Maud Savary-Mornet, The Global Impact Investing Network
Mr Michael Salvatico, S&P Global

7.1.2021 ERIBHEM WS
The Hong Kong Association Webinar
SR ERBERRA
Topic: The Hong Kong Business Update
#BE EEBFELCELE
Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC
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8.1.2021 [REBE RBER]-EHACBFHE-F - RIDETEEEERER
High-level Roundtable on “Fostering Hong Kong as Belt and Road Functional
Platform together with State-owned Enterprises”

= HEBEXEFHED [ —F—RKIBEAUHEERE
Topic: How State-owned Enterprises Could Promote
the Sustainable Development of Belt and \

Road Projects with Hong Kong's Professional
Services Sector

#E e EBFELCEE
Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC
\

18.1.2021 DM€ B E2021

Asian Financial Forum 2021
= BFrEROER : EENEREES
Topic: The Evolving Central Bank Digital Currency Landscape
FF: e EEESBEEL
Moderator: Dr King Au, FSDC
HE EEEFEILCEE

AE LT Bl K B 1 T SE £

2 HEEBEEBRHEE

B B RIEF 5 5l /o =B E & 7t 4
B4 B iR 77 BIFT R 4 &% A 0 Benedlicte Nolens3 +
Speakers: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC
Mr Henri Arslanian, PwC
Prof Shusong Ba, FSDC
Mr Joseph Chan, Under Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury

Ms Benedicte Nolens, BIS Innovation Hub, Hong Kong Centre

SR ERBEBEEHKE

Topic: Meetup with Hong Kong Regulators
FHF: SHEBE—EEL

Moderator: Dr Rocky Tung, FSDC
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20-21.1.2021

B
Topic:
AL
Speaker:

FE:
Topic:
#BE
Speaker:

FE:
Topic:
B
Speaker:

FE:
Topic:
T
Moderator:

HE

Speakers:

FRE:
Topic:
FF-
Moderator:

EE

Speakers:

BAHPE30B AT ERES

Forbes Under 30 Summit China

TRBERRTEESRBREENER

Hong Kong's Financial Services Development amid the Era of New Economy
& EHRER G BRFIEFIEE

Mr Christopher Hui, Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury

EETRRENES

Advantages of Hong Kong's Financial Services
BEHBEREILCELE

Mr Laurence Li, FSDC

BERAMKREEETHEEERLENER 22

Hong Kong is the Prime Location for Offshore Asset Allocation for Mainland Investors
e EEERBEL

Dr King Au, FSDC

RIRMES L BENKE

Hong Kong as a Fund-raising Platform

2&Fm T RXL

Ms Ding Chen, FSDC
BEERGREEFER L AR PEL 1

7 BYBY R & B AR (7 IR 2+ a] &2 8N 1E 1

Blue Pool Capital Z=37 85 55 £

Ms Bonnie Chan, Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
Dr Haizhou Huang, China International Capital Corporation
Mr Danny Lee, Blue Pool Capital

FRERPHEMTRNRERE

Hong Kong as an Investment Gateway
2#E T RXL

Ms Ding Chen, FSDC

ERBESIEEL

EEEAFBIELE

FBEAPGE E B Iy 7] Yoo-Kyung Park X 1
Mr Peter Yan, FSDC

Mr Wallace Yu, FSDC

Ms Yoo-Kyung Park, APG Asset Management
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21.1.2021 ESGH 71 882020 - R LN &
ESG Achievement Awards 2020 - Online Briefing Session
F&: ESGRE FENREMUGEERE
Topic: ESG, Impact and Socially Responsible Investing
#BE e EEESBEEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
24.2.2021 2RABEEEXATHE(GARP)ERARAE
Global Association of Risk Professionals (GARP) Virtual Risk Convention
= REMNEHFBEHFHE
Topic: The Race to Digitize: An Asian Perspective
FHF: e EmESBEEL
Moderator: Dr King Au, FSDC
B eHEEEFEXL
Speaker: Ms Winnie Wong, FSDC
17.3.2021 58 — @ S M A A B B b0 3R  IE
2nd Annual Private Wealth Asia Singapore Forum
= FMmE: RRIREAANEERENZHELERE
Topic: Opening Bell: Asset Allocation and Macro-Economic Outlook for the Next 12 Months
A eEREERFEL
Speaker: Mr Ivan Wong, FSDC
17.3.2021 B (ZREBMPOER BLBHHAITE
Launch Webinar of Global Financial Centres Index 29
FE: ERECRBRBENRNER
Topic: The Latest Development of Hong Kong's Financial Services Industry
#E B EBRER BB RAFIEFLE
Speaker: Mr Christopher Hui, Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
TR ERERBRZRPONBRES
Topic: Hong Kong's Unique Role as an International Financial Centre
#BE 2 EEESBEL
Speaker: Dr King Au, FSDC
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23.3.2021 RIELUREBRESFHRES
Conference on Deepening Cooperation between Shandong and Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

TR MEBER FBRE - FHE
Topic: New Development, Structure and Opportunities
#E e REFELCEL
Speaker: Mr Laurence Li, FSDC
24.3.2021 ERERNEEBESNSERLANE
Webinar of Hong Kong Economic & Trade Office, Jakarta
THE: REEONRE N HECENAEZREERENHER
Topic: Resilience in the Post-COVID Era: Indonesian Enterprises to Leverage on Hong Kong's
Leading Financial Infrastructure
#E ERBIARE KL
WelabgE>m & 5 £
Speakers. Ms Diana Cesar, FSDC

Mr Simon Loong, WelLab

26.3.2021 ERRERARARARIA LTNE
FSDC Industry Exchange Series Webinar
ES= SIHS 5 WK AN AR A ST A 7 U0 R R
Topic: Zooming in: The Rise of Digital Currencies and Payment Methods
FHF 2 EEE=BEL
Moderator Dr King Au, FSDC
HEE TR
Hashkey i & % +

CarbonBlue Innovations K & 2 1%
Speakers: Dr Dorothy Chau, Tencent
Ms Angelina Kwan, Hashkey

Prof Michael Sung, CarbonBlue Innovations
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International Collaboration

As a new member of the World Alliance of International
Financial Centers (“WAIFC"), the FSDC had been proactive in
collaborating with the fellow members and promoting Hong
Kong as a financial centre through this network. We contributed
to the WAIFC Economic Recovery from the Pandemic project by
responding to questionnaires in relation to sustainable finance,
small and medium sized enterprises, and innovation and FinTech.

Besides we signed a bilateral MOU with Paris EUROPLACE on 2
March 2021 and with Casablanca Finance City Authority on 10
March 2021 to forge closer collaboration with our counterparts
in France and Morocco. The MOUs covers areas of potential
collaboration on sustainable finance and FinTech/financial
innovation.
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HEHRE Digital Development

CRBPEKEEIBUENEH SARES  The FSDC revamped its website with a more user-

BAHE ROMMEMMEEMEZTF AR friendly interface and better social media integration. The

BE IRAFRESR KA MIAEE- enhancement could help improve user experience and
engagement.

SERHPUEFHEIE AXEEIE210,000 - A It is encouraging to note that the FSDC website generated

T NETE L more than 210,000 visits over the past year.
e 2
ooo (Q fsdc.org.hk c) + O
\ J
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Boosting Engagement

Social media is a key platform to communicate with the
financial industry globally. The FSDC increased significantly
the use of social media channels for market promotion and
follower acquisition. The FSDC also engaged audience with
content on diverse topics, ranging from family offices to
Central Bank Digital Currency, and from ESG to public and
private funds.

During the year, the FSDC LinkedIn followers increased from
less than 600 to more than 3,300.

The creation of the FSDC Twitter page expanded our global
digital footprint to overseas markets. In approximately one
year, the FSDC Twitter followers grew to more than 1,900.

@—=a

NS =
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The FSDC has continued to grow the talent pool and support
talent development, believing that this underpins Hong Kong's
status as an international finance centre. Collaborating with
tertiary institutions and industry associations, the FSDC hosted
digital events that connected with local students and improved
their knowledge of the financial industry and its many
opportunities. Further human capital initiatives included a pilot
job-shadowing programme, the FSDC's 7th Career Day and
seminars under Practitioner Speakers Series.

Career Day

The FSDC continued to support human capital development
in Hong Kong by holding its flagship event Career Day, for
the 7th year, on 17 October 2020. Due to the pandemic, the
event was held in virtual mode for the first time. Like previous
events, it enabled tertiary students and fresh graduates to
learn more about the career opportunities and prospects of
different financial sectors through the insightful sharing of
seasoned practitioners. With prestigious speakers, namely Mr
Laurence Li, Mr Don Kanak and Mr Christopher Hui, delivering
their speeches, the event garnered a strong turnout of more
than 350 audience.
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On Career Day, 10 leading industry practitioners joined two
engaging panel discussions where they encouraged students to
explore the growth potentials in various financial sectors and to
equip themselves with the appropriate skill sets. At the first panel
discussion, entitled “Employment Trends Under an Uncertain
Outlook”, speakers shed light on the latest employment trends in
several financial sectors including FinTech and asset and wealth
management. At the second panel “Unlock Career Opportunities
in Sustainable Finance”, speakers discussed new career path
opportunities driven by the rise of sustainable finance.

\
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Likewise, the popular CV Clinic session was held in virtual
booths online. Human resources professionals from a wide
range of financial sectors including commercial and investment
banking, asset management, private equity, insurance, FinTech,
accounting, as well as recruitment consultants, offered one-
on-one advisory services to students on CV writing and
interview skills. Institutions that provided advice at the
virtual CV Clinic were Asia Insurance Company Limited, Avo
Insurance, Euroclear Bank, Ernst & Young, Global Sage, HKEX,
J.P. Morgan, KPMG, Odgers Berndtson, Standard Chartered
Bank, The Bank of East Asia, Limited and Welab.
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Practitioner Speakers Series

To introduce the financial services industry to more youngsters
in Hong Kong, the FSDC extended its popular Practitioner
Speakers Series to all university students and young industry
professionals starting in January 2021. The webinars covered
specific sectors of the financial industry such as investment
banking, asset management and Fintech. Industry practitioners
were invited to share their career journeys and provide the
audience with job seeking advice and overviews of their
respective sectors. Six seminars were hosted in 2020/21.
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Pilot Job-shadowing programme

The FSDC successfully launched the pilot job-shadowing
programme in the first half of 2020. The programme proved
to be a good opportunity for students who wanted to gain
firsthand exposure to the financial services sector. Through this
initiative, selected university students were able to gain practical
experience at financial institutions including asset management,
hedge funds and banking. They were able to shadow senior
executives for a glimpse of their day-to-day work and witness
first-hand the culture and environment of the organisations.

N
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Dr King Au, Ms Ding Chen, Mr Thomas Wong, Mr Eric Yip and
Mr Thomas Tsui were shadowed by the selected students for
a full day. The job-shadowing programme was tailor-made to

feature a morning briefing session, a luncheon dialogue and
cross-departmental meetings.

\

ANNUAL REPORT £ 2020/21 101



ANERER
HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT

20202 FEERNBER TSR
Career seminars organised in 2020/21 included:

21.4.2020 BREHET AR
City University of Hong Kong
TR B MESGIAIE R RS MEEERNRY
Topic: How Do Technology and ESG Redefine the Landscape in Fund and Asset Management?
#E 2 E BRI
EEBAFBIELE
Speakers: Mr Henry Chan, FSDC

Mr Wallace Yu, FSDC

28.4.2020 EBEIKRE
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

s 8 7 LegalTech B2 RegTech &Y 44 i T 4

Topic: Demystify LegalTech and RegTech

B FEF R (FE) R BFRL AR R L
AT E

Speakers: Mr Danny Kan, Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China Ltd.

Mr Gene Liu, LegalX

18.6.2020 BEEHRXKRE
The Chinese University of Hong Kong
T RETORB RS ERS
Topic: Job Hunting and Career Opportunities in Times of Uncertainty
AL BB
e ERFEFLLE
Speakers: Mr Leiming Chen, FSDC

Mr Armstrong Lee, FSDC

9.7.2020 ERBEIKRE

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
TE: FEBRIRTTHO L R 108
Topic: New Career Opportunities in Virtual Banking
BE Mox Bank#E & 50 2 1
Speaker: Ms Eliza Law, Mox Bank
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EBE*
FSDC*

BRRERITOSWEY

Demystify Investment Banking

2 ERFEELE

& B YR 2 3 & 7B A 5 A IR 2 AR oK B 5T A
Mr David Lau, FSDC

Mr Barry Chan, China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited

THE*
FSDC*

MEEBREARKEFE ?

Is It Cool to be an Asset Management Professional?
L EBRBEL L

BERBEE G NEHEIESLF

Ms Eleanor Wan, FSDC

Mr Nelson Chow, Hong Kong Investment Funds Association

* HRERTEHSERIM YHFERERRBESZ M-

* The seminar was held by the FSDC and students from various higher education institutions were invited to attend.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for year ended 31 March 2021.

Principal Activities

The FSDC is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at Unit 502, 5/F, Nexxus Building, No. 41 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong. The principal activities of the FSDC
are:

1. advising the Government on strategies and measures to
expand the scope of the financial markets of Hong Kong
and enhance the competitiveness of Hong Kong as an
international financial centre;

2. supporting the financial services industry of Hong Kong
in developing the core competence and knowledge of its
practitioners; and

3. promoting the financial services industry of Hong Kong
and Hong Kong as an international financial centre in
the Mainland and overseas.

Mission
The FSDC is established in 2013 and incorporated in 2018
as a high-level and cross-sectoral advisory body to engage

the industry and formulate proposals to promote the further
development of Hong Kong'’s financial services industry.
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Our Business

During 2020/21, our policy researches revolved around four
main themes, namely green and sustainable finance, FinTech,
asset and wealth management, and connectivity with the
Mainland and the rest of the world. A total of nine reports/
publications on different areas of financial services were issued
in 2020/21, which include —

o two reports regarding connectivity with the Mainland,
with one featuring Hong Kong's unique role in the GBA

and the other on offshore RMB business;

o a report with recommendations on how Hong Kong can
consolidate its status as a preferred family office hub;

o a report which proposed ways to develop Hong Kong
into a global ESG investment hub of Asia;

o a report with recommendations regarding group tax loss
relief;

o a report with recommendations on enhancing access to
the A-share market by expanding the range of A-share-
linked derivatives and structured products;

. a brief with recent developments on CBDCs; and

o consultation responses on corporate weighted voting
rights beneficiaries and IPO settlement process.
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On market promotion, while the pandemic has had an impact
on its physical promotional activities since early 2020, the
FSDC’s market promotion efforts have been strengthened
rather than weakened as we responded swiftly by making
use of technology. We continued to promote Hong Kong as
an international financial centre through participation in 47
leading industry events which were mostly conducted virtually
or in a hybrid mode; extending our reach to the target
audiences around the world, including Shanghai, the UK, the
US, Indonesia and Singapore; launching our first branded
series of webinars namely “FSDC Industry Exchange Series”;
holding 37 outreach meetings to engage local, Mainland and
overseas industry bodies; and revamping the FSDC website
with more functions and a better look and feel.

In developing human capital, the FSDC organised eight events,
including pilot job-shadowing programme, the Practitioner
Speakers Series seminars, and the 7th Career Day, which
went virtual with discussion panels and one-on-one advisory
services offered by distinguished guests and human resources
professionals respectively to students from over 10 local
tertiary institutions.

The FSDC also sought international collaboration through
signing MOU with its counterparts in France and Morocco
to strengthen collaboration on market promotion and talent
development.
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Key relationship with Stakeholders

Being a Government subvented organisation, the FSDC follows
and observes all regulations and requirements specified by the
Government, including but not limited to matters regarding
the FSDC's application of fund.

As a cross-sectoral advisory body, the FSDC is tasked to
engage the financial services industry in formulating proposals
to promote the further development of the financial services
industry of Hong Kong and to map out the strategic direction
for the development. In view of the fast-evolving financial
services landscape, the FSDC regularly reviews the composition
of its Committees to ensure a comprehensive and balanced
representation of industry voices. Committee memberships
were expanded by number and sector representation during
the reporting period. As part of the policy research work,
the FSDC works with regulatory and trade bodies, as well
as industry and professional associations, to identify new
opportunities for and any constraints on the sustainable
growth and diversity of the financial services industry. It
also maintains ongoing dialogue with relevant bodies in
the Mainland and overseas to support the financial services
industry of Hong Kong in accessing new markets and growth
areas.

Having developed its own in-house Policy Research Team post
incorporation, the FSDC has strengthened its research capacity
through organising sector- and issue-specific focus groups and
closed-door discussion sessions, consisting of both physical
and virtual meetings, to develop strategic directions and
gauge market views at a greater depth. Industry feedbacks
and practical recommendations on various issues have been
included in the FSDC's policy research reports on various
subjects.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The FSDC relies on the Government to fund its operations, any
changes to the Government policy on its subvention to the
FSDC may have vital effect on the future development of it.

Themes and messages that the FSDC disseminates and target
audiences that we approach are subject to the local and
international social-economic conditions. Turbulence in the
macro environment can impact FSDC’s promotional efforts.

Future Development

While the breadth of FSDC's research and connections with
research institutes have improved over the past years, the
FSDC will continue to establish and strengthen connections
with local, regional and global research institutes through
participation in relevant forums and other means.

The FSDC's research in 2021/22 will continue to focus on the
four key broad themes, namely green and sustainable finance,
FinTech, asset and wealth management, and connectivity with
the Mainland and the rest of the world. Topics to be explored
under these themes will include cybersecurity, REITs, green
finance strategy in the GBA, healthcare and biotechnology
financing, private wealth management.

The FSDC’s policy recommendations will focus on regulatory
affairs, product development, talent supply and tax
arrangement. The FSDC will step up efforts in exchanging
views with related organisations in Hong Kong, the Mainland
and overseas through engagement meetings, roundtables and
thematic forums, with a view to mapping out the strategic
directions for the development of the financial services
industry of Hong Kong.
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The FSDC aspires to promote Hong Kong as an
international financial centre globally by leveraging its
extensive professional network and unique position as
a cross-sectoral advisory body for the financial services
industry. A comprehensive, global and social media-
focused marketing strategy will be implemented with
these key initiatives.

o establish a customer relationship management
system to implement the strategy;

J develop overseas stakeholder networks in major
financial centres via targeted marketing on selected
digital channels with thematic and interactive
contents;

o engage flagship platforms and local media in major
financial centres to showcase the achievements and
policy roadmap of Hong Kong in respect of major
themes;

o develop joint promotion opportunities with the
MOU signers and strengthen ties with other WAIFC
members; and

o continue to collaborate closely with all the key

stakeholders in Hong Kong on market promotion
and industry engagements.
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1

The continuous and ample supply of high-quality talent
has been key to the success of Hong Kong’s financial
services industry. The FSDC has placed strong emphasis
on human capital development since its foundation
years, and more resources will be deployed to enhance
efforts as below in 2021/22, including

o completing a policy research paper with an aim of
facilitating the manpower planning in accordance
with emerging trends such as the rise of ESG and
FinTech which will have implications on the future
demand for talent; and

o expanding the scope of the Talent Amplifier
Programme' by adding new initiatives such as
Fireside Chat with Young Practitioners and Mingling
with Team Leads, considering that students aspiring
to enter the industry would benefit from more
regular and high-touch opportunities to interact
with industry practitioners.

TAP, was first introduced during 2019/20, as a C-suite job
shadowing initiative. The programme is being expanded to
include more educational engagements with the target audience
(i.e. university students and young industry professionals) going
forward.
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The Board of Directors

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of
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this report were:

Mr Laurence Li Lu-jen
Mr James H. Lau Jr.

Mr Christopher Hui Ching Yu

Mr Joseph Chan

Dr Au King-lun

Ms Diana Cesar
Ms Lena Chan
Mr Mark Dickens

Ms Ding Chen

Mr Henry Fan Hung-ling
Mr Glenn Fok

Dr Hu Zhanghong

Mr Jimmy Lai Chi Ming
Dr Lin Yong

Mr Brian Li Man-bun
Mr Joe Ngai

(retired with effect from
22 April 2020)
(re-designated as Ex-officio
Board Member with effect
from 22 April 2020)
(re-designated as Alternate
Director to Mr Christopher Hui
Ching Yu with effect from
22 April 2020)

(resigned and re-appointed
with effect from

4 August 2020)

(retired with effect from
17 January 2021)

(retired with effect from
17 January 2021)

Mr Andrew Walter Bougourd Ross Weir

Ms Winnie Wong Chi-shun

Mr Stephen Wong Yuen-shan

Mr Donald Perry Kanak

Mr Jeremy Dinshaw Lam

Ms Amy Lo Choi-Wan

(appointed with effect from
17 January 2021)
(appointed with effect from
17 January 2021)
(appointed with effect from
17 January 2021)
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Except for Mr James H. Lau Jr., Mr Mark Dickens and Mr Joe
Ngai, all the existing directors shall continue in office for the
following year.

Directors’ Interests in Transaction,
Arrangements or Contracts

No contract of significance to which the FSDC was a party,
and in which a director of the FSDC had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the FSDC is currently in force and was in force this
year.

Auditor

A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditor
of the FSDC will be proposed to Members of the FSDC.

On behalf of the Board
Laurence Li Lu-jen
Chairman

30 June 2021
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BYRHBEHE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

(Incorporated in Hong Kong as a company limited by
guarantee)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Financial
Services Development Council ("FSDC") set out on pages 117
to 152, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the FSDC as at 31 March 2021
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
FSDC in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

ANNUAL REPORT £ 2020/21 113



BYZBMBE &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT - Continued

FHRANVHEMESR

ERANHEMERAE -EMESRETE
REFRANER EFBEMBHRER LB
Iz BRED R o

BAUMBERENBERL NREEMES
BT HZFEMESERTATANE

L7 4ok A
A2 Am A ©

BEBRMUMBRERNET RANELR
MEEMES BB+ ERHEMEER
BEPHHRAXKPIERITBREPI T ED
BAFEEAEBREUFFEEARNERR
MBI - ERHEFIEAITH T 0 RIEAI
RREMEEFEEAERRL ZMHF2
HBEZFE-EENE RIEERNERS-

EERMBRRARENTR

EXFAERBETESMOSEMN (F
B BHRELER) REE (RREHD BEE
EMPENMBHRE YHERRRBEMB
WK W N R SRR T B B
ERHERRAAUFOAEHEE -

EREMERERK EFRETEHSERE
BRENEN UEBRBERTHEESE
REBAMNEER URERKELLE RS
A RIEFEERBHRBBHELL
2 IR EEMBERNERTSR

114 ANNUAL REPORT %%k 2020/21

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the FSDC's annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the FSDC's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
FSDC or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the FSDC's internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (Continued)

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the FSDC's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the FSDC to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021

A LB s R R RN HBRAER T E - — AR IR A R -

If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese versions of this auditor’s report, the English version shall prevail.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2021F3A31H L FE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2021 2020
B 5 ke et
Note HK$ HK$
A Revenue
BREB® Government subventions 7 28,765,495 35,527,673
BT B & Government grants for
— 2 RRT R Financial Industry
BB N A2 Recruitment Scheme
for Tomorrow (“FIRST") 8 3,309,287 -
E b g A Other income 9 393 14,273
32,075,175 35,541,946
o Less:
EEEBH Operating expenses
B BB Staff costs 10 14,429,218 12,550,224
% EE B & Auditor’s remuneration 175,000 110,000
e Depreciation
—-BREE - Owned assets 13 1,197,700 1,178,119
—EREEE — Right-of-use assets 14 3,908,701 3,908,701
ANERERE Human capital initiatives 308,175 176,330
BN IT expenses 342,552 374,109
EREMEEEHR Legal and professional fees 336,265 250,500
I HE Market promotion 3,243,540 3,843,248
BR M IE Policy research 2,892,493 1,145,565
B BTS2 i Premises expenses 741,325 747,645
HEEER Recruitment expenses 66,051 102,141
B RS E BB AL FIRST expenses
FTEIX 8 3,029,578 -
Hih2EER Other operating expenses 525,642 1,257,975
31,196,240 25,644,557
B 7 B A< Finance costs
HEBERNE Interest on lease liabilities 18 851,129 1,032,498
Bl Bk Surplus before income tax 27,806 8,864,891
FBHER/ (XH) Income tax credit/(expense) 12 76,590 (1,197,706)
EEERBHBR Surplus and total
HRZEE comprehensive income
for the year 104,396 7,667,185
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R202143H31H
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

2021 2020
B 5 & ikt
Note HK$ HK$
ERBEE Non-current assets
RE -EKBERREHE Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 13 4,360,157 5,460,879
FREEE Right-of-use assets 14 14,331,903 18,240,604
18,692,060 23,701,483
REBEE Current assets
e RIEFNFIA Deposits and prepayments 15 2,043,869 1,533,896
IRITIF X Bank balances 14,568,875 10,389,623
16,612,744 11,923,519
HWEE Total assets 35,304,804 35,625,002
I R=R Current liabilities
BERBFESE, Government subventions/

W grants received in advance 16 6,311,687 1,884,744
BEREHSE Capital subventions 17 1,080,433 1,080,433
b S BRI T 4R Other payables and accruals 719,183 687,330
HEBE Lease liabilities 18 3,917,015 3,726,367
JFE TR IR Tax payable 1,214,980 1,153,868

13,243,298 8,532,742
ERBEE Net current assets 3,369,446 3,390,777
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - Continued

R202143A31H
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021

2021 2020
B 5 peided ikt
Note HK$ HK$
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
EAREHME Capital subventions 17 2,764,278 3,844,711
HEAE Lease liabilities 18 11,453,198 15,370,213
RIERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 19 60,926 198,628
14,278,402 19,413,552
HwaE Total liabilities 27,521,700 27,946,294
BEE Net assets 7,783,104 7,678,708
=gy Funds
HEES Reserve fund 20 7,783,104 7,678,708

HRENTEZEFIENMBREREN2021F6 A0 RS R REEFSHEURETIE WH TIREKES !
The financial statements on pages 117 to 152 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
of the FSDC on 30 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Z=#{= Laurence Li Lu-jen Z 21 Andrew Walter Bougourd Ross Weir
E % Director % Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

HZE2021F3A31H L FZ
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Reserve fund
g
HK$
MR2019F4 18 & ¢k Balance at 1 April 2019 11,523
REERHBREEWRETE Surplus and total comprehensive income
for the year 7,667,185
M202063A318 & Balance at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020
2020F 4 A1 H #6% 7,678,708
AEERHEEZARGBE Surplus and total comprehensive income
for the year 104,396
R2021F3A31B &8k Balance at 31 March 2021 7,783,104
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2021F3A31H L FE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2021 2020
B 5 B ok
Note HK$ HK$
KETH2ESME Cash flows from operating
activities
BiAT &k Surplus before income tax 27,806 8,864,891
R Adjustments for:
REEB R Depreciation on furniture,
REE fixtures and equipment 1,197,700 1,178,119
FREEENE Depreciation on
right-of-use assets 3,908,701 3,908,701
FEWA Interest income (393) (12,481)
HEBEMNFIEFML  Interest expenses on lease
liabilities 851,129 1,032,498
EEESEBAIZ Operating surplus before
RERER working capital changes 5,984,943 14,971,728
REMERNFRIEBEZ Increase in deposits and
#n prepayments (509,973) (51,381)
FERBFEE, Increase/(Decrease) in
EEulcapd-b g government subventions/
(R ) grants received in advance 4,426,943 (4,447 ,240)
H b ENFFIETIEZ  Increase/(Decrease) in other
#in, Crd) payables and accruals 31,853 (1,558,405)
RETHREBZ Net cash from operating
B R activities 9,933,766 8,914,702
RETE2HERE Cash flows from investing
activities
BERAE KER Purchase of furniture, fixtures
Bg] and equipment (96,978) (190,496)
BEAREE ZHD Decrease in capital subventions (1,080,433) (1,080,433)
2IF B Interest received 393 12,481
REFEBMAZ Net cash used in investing
REFE activities (1,177,018) (1,258,448)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2021F3A31H L FZ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

2021 2020
Bt B ki
Note HK$ HK$
METEHHELRE Cash flows from financing
activities
BEMRESR Repayment of principal portion
il B2) of lease liabilities 18 (3.726,367) (3,163,539)
BHEHESR Repayment of interest portion of
GlP=N=i37) lease liabilities 18 (851,129) (1,032,498)
RMEEBRMAZ Net cash used in financing
HE&FEE activities 18 (4,577,496) (4,196,037)
BeRBEELEEYWZ Netincrease in cash and
3 cash equivalents 4,179,252 3,460,217
FOZHEER Cash and cash equivalents
REeEEY at the beginning of the year 10,389,623 6,929,406
FRZEER Cash and cash equivalents
ReZEEY at the end of the year
REBITHH representing bank balances 14,568,875 10,389,623
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20219F3A31H
31 March 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

The FSDC is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and

limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office
is Unit 502, 5/F, Nexxus Building, No. 41 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the FSDC are:

advising the Government on strategies and
measures to expand the scope of the financial
markets of Hong Kong and enhance the
competitiveness of Hong Kong as an international
financial centre;

supporting the financial services industry of Hong
Kong in developing the core competence and
knowledge of its practitioners; and

promoting the financial services industry of Hong
Kong and Hong Kong as an international financial
centre in the Mainland and overseas.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), the functional currency of
the FSDC. Functional currency is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the FSDC
operates.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2020

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Interest Rate and Benchmark Reform

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018

The adoption of the above new/revised HKFRSs
did not have any significant impact to the FSDC's
financial statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the FSDC's financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the FSDC.

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions’

Amendments to HKAS 16
Proceeds Before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37
Onerous Contracts-Cost of fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements
Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
Current and Related Amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°
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31 March 2021

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

June 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023.

The FSDC considered that the above standards are
not expected to have a material impact on the FSDC's
accounting policies and financial statements in the
current or future reporting periods.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an asset includes its
purchase price and any direct costs of acquisition.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the FSDC and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to statement of
comprehensive income during the period in which
they are incurred.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment (Continued)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-
line basis. The useful lives are as follows:

Right-of-use assets (building)
— over the remaining term of the lease

Leasehold improvements — 6 years

Furniture and fixtures — 6 years

Office equipment — 5 years

The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period. An asset
is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than its
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of furniture,
fixtures and equipment is the difference between
its net proceeds and carrying amount, and is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on disposal.
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31 March 2021

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Leasing

The FSDC as lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases
or finance leases) are required to be capitalised
in the statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of
low-value. The FSDC has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value
assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability; (ii) any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv)
an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to
the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. The FSDC measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
cost model, the right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

ANNUAL REPORT £} 2020/21 127



BRI — &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

20219F3HA31H
31 March 2021

4. FEEHEE (H)

(b) & (&)
HERE

HERBERNEERKAEMAX
MZHREMFNRERR -BEM
FIRAER S MR (% F) = 7] &
HEE)RB WM ERELES
B c¥ERERAEEES

HEHEMBE A THEEEER
FAREZETE & B 8 R ST VS 5K
SWAESBEEN: ()EE N FRK
Ef A E R (NBURK K5
B M R R EEE N VTR
AHAEAEABMNOSRERERE: (v)
BEEREENTRE (FAERTE
EEASTEZEERERE) RO
IFHEXAE R (HES
RATHATTHREZRELRE) -

REEARR 2 ERHEB TS
AFFEHRERE: (MEMNEREEMN
RERFHEREZHE ()R ERE
BEARBRBENK: KiilEHTE
FREEARBEMBEGEEERE
BT Pl FREE AR
CBEREEHEEMNRK
BENESABERBEENTG
HE) S| MA AR REERE

AEnE

128 ANNUAL REPORT %%k 2020/21

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the FSDC uses
the FSDC's incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use of
the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the FSDC
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)
(i)

(i)

(iii)

Financial instruments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.

Deposits and bank balances are classified as
financial assets at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and

losses, impairment losses, gain or loss on
derecognition are recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Gains or losses arising on derecognition are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment of financial assets

The FSDC assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
financial assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

ANNUAL REPORT £} 2020/21 129



5 3 % M o —
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

20219F3HA31H
31 March 2021

4. FEEHEE (H)

(d) AR

(e)

BREYE ®HE

mee s BT RKI BN ESE,
e BB RK S BRI
s ZBFEB S B2 R
WHER-MZBFED S HHE
RAEETRBAX  MEZFRAX
E 4 HIRE A P FER R U © N2
BREBS fHEE RiETEEE -
AZENS HHEGRTEEZ
HEHBHBNRAXELNRE
REm SRS R -

BEARA RELRREBMKEEER
MEMS W& EMBREKD
RIEEAED S WHEMBEERN
ERFERAERREA -

FE WA
A B BB RX IR B L
{51 HERR ©

MEH

MEREIEE B IR MEERIA -

ERRADREN RS HREMB
e EE EERmOBRAIEE -

130 ANNUAL REPORT %%k 2020/21

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition

Government subventions/grants

Government subventions/grants are recognised
initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the FSDC will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Government
subventions/grants that compensate the FSDC for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Government subventions/
grants relating to specific projects are deferred
and recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them
with the expenses that they are intended to
compensate.

Government subventions/grants received for the
purchase of furniture, fixtures and equipment are
recorded as capital subventions in the statement of
financial position and recognised as revenue over
the useful lives of the relevant assets.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable surpluses will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which
the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates

ruling at the end of the reporting period.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they

arise.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before 12
months after the end of the reporting period
in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the period when the employees
render the related services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan are recognised as an expense
when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the FSDC has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the FSDC if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
FSDC;

(i) has significant influence over the FSDC;
or

(iii) is a member of key management
personnel of the FSDC.

An entity is related to the FSDC if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  the entity and the FSDC are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a

third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of the
FSDC or an entity related to the FSDC;

the entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

FSDC.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the FSDC
reviews the carrying amounts of non-financial
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
statement of comprehensive income.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The FSDC's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the FSDC's ability to continue as a going
concern.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES

In applying the accounting policies, the FSDC makes
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that the directors are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

A review of the more significant estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of these financial
statements is as follows:

Recognition of deferred tax

Deferred tax are recognised and measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period. In determining the carrying
amounts of deferred tax, expected taxable surplus are
estimated which involves a number of assumptions
relating to the operating environment of the FSDC and
require a significant level of judgment exercised by the
directors. Any change in such assumptions and judgment
would affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax to be
recognised and hence the net surplus/deficit in future
years.



MM RME &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

EXSHABRMLFZEE
R (&)

BEEHNFEH
HERBERVNEZEHERANERNNEE
NHRENREEER- REEMGE &
BERRSERIUNITENELEER
MBEANNHEEHNREG 2 EREEEM
EHBREENBER MR RITE
REFE FETEERENAIEE.
EEE BRERGRME METHEE
BAENRZEREEHSEREZN
EEN -NRESHRBHEFBE AN B
EBEAENHHBRBELERNEL RS
BHHEHEEHIR

MHE AT IE ISR D &S 72 8 R K
FERRNHEABNERAREEENS
Be

20219F3A31H
31 March 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES (Continued)

Determining the lease term

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the lease term.
In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for the lease that include an renewal option
exercisable by the FSDC, the FSDC evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal option taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the FSDC to exercise
the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the FSDC's operation. The lease
term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the
FSDC’s control.

Any increase or decrease in the lease term would affect
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.

BRES GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS
2021 2020
ik ikt
HK$ HK$
KERZEDS Subventions for recurrent
expenditure 27,685,062 34,447,240
EXREPS I W Subventions for capital
expenditure 1,080,433 1,080,433
EEEERAERS Government subventions
BF&EB&E recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income 28,765,495 35,527,673
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8. BM#ME—SAIRE%XA 8 GOVERNMENT GRANT FOR FINANCIAL

B A =t &l

TOMORROW (“FIRST")

INDUSTRY RECRUITMENT SCHEME FOR

2021 2020
it B
HKS$ HK$
© Bl AR 7 2 BB AL 5t 3 Government grant for FIRST to
AT HE Bh LA (2 compensate:
—EE KA - Staff costs 279,709 -
—Hfh B RITHER — Other operating and
administrative expenses 3,029,578 -
3,309,287 -
9. HfMWA 9. OTHER INCOME
2021 2020
B B
HK$ HK$
HRITH B A Bank interest income 393 12,481
EHEBRLE Refund of business
registration fee - 1,792
393 14,273
10. EE R A 10. STAFF COSTS
2021 2020
B ki
HKS$ HK$
BEKAKE Staff costs (including a director)
(BE18E=x): comprise:
— Hr BN e H At fE A — Salaries and other benefits 14,173,845 12,333,863
—EREEFRKREE 2 — Contributions to defined
i contribution retirement plan 255,373 216,361
14,429,218 12,550,224
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11.

Salaries and bonus

12.

Income tax credit/(expense)

20219F3A31H
31 March 2021

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and
the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622 G) are as follows:

Contributions to retirement

2021 2020

B B

HK$ HK$
2,310,085 2,529,160
13,500 15,000
2,323,585 2,544,160

Except for the Executive Director, all Directors of the
Board are not remunerated. The staff costs included the
emoluments of the Executive Director as stated above.

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

The amount of taxation in the statement of
comprehensive income represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong
Profits Tax
Deferred tax (Note 19)

2021 2020

& ot

HK$ HK$
(61,112) (1,153,868)
137,702 (43,838)
76,590 (1,197,706)
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12. FIBHER/ (XH) (&) 12. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

(Continued)

REFEMEHE R/ (ZH) TR AR The income tax credit/(expense) for the year can be
BREMIR AN ¢ reconciled to the surplus before income tax as follows:
2021 2020
i B
HK$ HK$
1S T Al & g4 Surplus before income tax 27,806 8,864,891
BREBFNEHEFEZ Tax calculated at Hong Kong
HIE profits tax rate (4,588) (1,462,707)
EBERENOTRZE Tax effect of concessionary
tax rate 2,294 165,000
BERTWANREZE  Tax effect of non-taxable income 65 2,060
FERABIRER BT IEE R Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised - 254,741
BiGER Tax concession 10,000 20,000
Hh, Others 68,819 (176,800)
FEHRKE/ (ZH) Income tax credit/(expense) 76,590 (1,197,706)
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13. XA -#£BRXHE 13. FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT
HENEEE REEE BAERE A3t
Leasehold Furniture and Office
improvements fixtures equipment Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
A Cost

20194511 At 1 April 2019 3,795,641 1,343,030 1,502,661 6,641,332
FEEM Additions during the year 83,950 7,204 99,342 190,496

R202043A318 % At 31 March 2020 and

2020F4A18 1 April 2020 3,879,591 1,350,234 1,602,003 6,831,828
FEEM Additions during the year - - 96,978 96,978
2021F3A31H At 31 March 2021 3,879,591 1,350,234 1,698,981 6,928,806

2itihE Accumulated depreciation
R2019F4A1H At 1 April 2021 105,434 37,307 50,089 192,830
FEFE Depreciation charge
for the year 646,598 225,039 306,482 1,178,119

20203 A318 % At 31 March 2020 and

20204718 1 April 2020 752,032 262,346 356,571 1,370,949
FEME Depreciation charge
for the year 646,599 225,039 326,062 1,197,700
R2021%3A31H At 31 March 2021 1,398,631 487,385 682,633 2,568,649
FEE Carrying amount
M2021%E3H318 At 31 March 2021 2,480,960 862,849 1,016,348 4,360,157
#2020%3A31H At 31 March 2020 3,127,559 1,087,888 1,245,432 5,460,879
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The FSDC leases office premises in Hong Kong. The

leases of which comprise only fixed payments over the

lease term.

Recognition of right-of-use asset
upon initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019

Depreciation

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020
Depreciation

At 31 March 2021

Cost

Recognition of right-of-use asset
upon initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019

At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 and
31 March 2021

Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge for the year

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020
Depreciation charge for the year

At 31 March 2021

Net carrying amount
At 31 March 2021

At 31 March 2020

3 2 B2 P
Office premises
B s
HK$

22,149,305
(3,908,701)

18,240,604
(3,908,701)

14,331,903

22,149,305

22,149,305

3,908,701

3,908,701
3,908,701

7,817,402

14,331,903

18,240,604
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20219F3A31H
31 March 2021

BEMBEARE 15. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2021 2020
B palees
HKS$ HK$
e Deposits 1,348,909 1,349,009
TETFRIB Prepayments 694,960 184,887
2,043,869 1,533,896

4B 1,348,909 (2019 : /¥
1,349,009) 78 EARAM 4 LA Uk [E] -

ARBREDE #e

16.

Deposits of HK$1,348,909 (2019: HK$1,349,009) which
are expected to be recovered after more than one year.

GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS/GRANTS

RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

H2019%F4F1H
AEEWRIOBRFEY S

A (B EE7)

7202093 A31H k20204818
AEBWINBRFTEDE

FEAMA (KIEET7)
REE KD & B ARTS X BBt 3

BT Bh &
s AMA (KIEES)

R20219F3H31H

At 1 April 2019

Government subventions received
during the year

Recognised as revenue (Note 7)

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

Government subventions received
during the year

Recognised as revenue (Note 7)

Government grants received
during the year in respect of FIRST
Recognised as revenue (Note 8)

At 31 March 2021

B
HK$

6,331,984

30,000,000
(34,447,240)

1,884,744

31,821,292
(27,685,062)

4,136,230

3,600,000
(3,309,287)

290,713

6,311,687
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

20219F3HA31H
31 March 2021

16 ARBRESE #HHE

17.

(#&)

BEREARKA/ARBERRBRANE

16. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS/GRANTS

RECEIVED IN ADVANCE (Continued)

Subventions/grants unexpended/not recognised as

Be/mbhe: revenue at the end of the reporting period:
2021 2020
i ok
HK$ HK$
HERHEMES Rental and other deposits 1,348,909 1,349,009
RERPFRERE Furniture and office equipment 535,735
TR BRTS R BB AL A8 FIRST _
Htb1g B Other projects 4,156,619 -
6,311,687 1,884,744

BRBNHED/MABHELERNSED
REEIEEREER 2RAREKIGET
MR R MR WEFRSEL
AR MIERBEEE X HHEENAEA T

HHERRBUA

EXxEDE

MR2019F4/F1H
SFAUA (HIFE7)

7202093 A31H K2020F4H81H
AU (HaE7)

R2021F3A31H
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Government subventions/grants received in advance
represent subventions/grants received in connection with
expenditure to be incurred after the end of the reporting
period for specific uses and are deferred and recognised

as revenue on a systematic basis in the same period in

which the expenditure is incurred.

17. CAPITAL SUBVENTIONS

At 1 April 2019
Recognised as revenue (Note 7)

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020
Recognised as revenue (Note 7)

At 31 March 2021

B
HK$

6,005,577
(1,080,433)

4,925,144
(1,080,433)

3,844,711




17. 8X&8¢ (&)

18.

R&:

mEBaE
FRBAE

HERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

20219F3A31H
31 March 2021

17. CAPITAL SUBVENTIONS (Continued)

BXRAESMBRELERZF16%  Initial application of HKFRS 16

NN
BB

7202093 A31H k20204818

B
HERNR

R2021%F3H31H

Representing: 2021 2020
ks oo
HK$ HK$
Current liabilities 1,080,433 1,080,433
Non-current liabilities 2,764,278 3,844,711
3,844,711 4,925,144
18. LEASES LIABILITIES
N
Office premises
B
HK$
22,260,119
Interest expense 1,032,498
Lease payments (4,196,037)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 19,096,580
Interest expense 851,129
Lease payments (4,577,496)
At 31 March 2021 15,370,213
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

20219F3HA31H
31 March 2021

18. HEAE (&)
FREENROBBERIT -

2021

15 R Within one year

BRI FRTEE2F Later than one year and
not later than two years

B@2FETEBBESF  Later than two years and
not later than five years

2020

3 Within one year
HiB1FETBR2F Later than one year and
not later than two years
HBiB2F AT BRSF Later than two years and
not later than five years
HB5F Later than five years
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18. LEASES LIABILITIES (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

REHEENH FE BE
Minimum Present
lease payments Interest value
HK$ HK$ HK$
4,577,496 660,481 3,917,015
4,577,496 460,080 4,117,416
7,629,160 293,378 7,335,782
16,784,152 1,413,939 15,370,213
RIEHEE R Glps, BE
Minimum Present
lease payments Interest value
A B B
HK$ HK$ HK$
4,577,496 851,129 3,726,367
4,577,496 660,482 3,917,014
9,154,992 709,504 8,445,488
3,051,664 43,953 3,007,711
21,361,648 2,265,068 19,096,580
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

18. HEAE (&)

RERBENKHBRESFTLT -

MEEPELCBBEHRET

PIREREES B RELERF 165

BEHEAENASIS

EEHEERENF SN

R2021F3A31H

18. LEASES LIABILITIE

20219F3A31H
31 March 2021

S (Continued)

The present value of future lease payments are analysed

as follows:

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

2021 2020

ik B

HK$ HK$
3,917,015 3,726,367

11,453,198 15,370,213

15,370,213 19,096,580

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities:

Initial application of HKFRS 16

Change from cash flows:

Repayment of principal portion of
lease liabilities

Repayment of interest portion of |

Other changes:
Interest

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

Change from cash flows:

Repayment of principal portion of
lease liabilities

Repayment of interest portion of |

Other changes:

Interest

At 31 March 2021

B
HK$

22,260,119

(3,163,539)

ease liabilities (1,032,498)

1,032,498

19,096,580

(3,726,367)

ease liabilities (851,129)

851,129

15,370,213
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20219F3HA31H
31 March 2021

19. EEFHIEEFE

RERBEEEFE 2280 T
R2019F4A81H
REEWERIGM (FMFE12)

R2020F3H31H M2020F4A1H
REEW =K (HFE12)

19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

B EITE

Accelerated tax

depreciation

20.

21.

MR2021F3H31H

FEESAFE-—RBR TRATERAE
TEA-NEEAMBRFERR HEE
EARPANBNEN S LB TFEB
LV BEERNEDEEN25% ([#
wER]) -BHREELROBOART
— B BRFEREBAT -

BEXS

TEEERBASTM
TERNEIEEERBABRES EF
e F B EM BRI ENRRE-
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20.

21.

B s
HK$
Movement of deferred tax liabilities
during the year:
As at 1 April 2019 154,790
Charge to statement of comprehensive
income (Note 12) 43,838
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 198,628
Credit to statement of comprehensive
income (Note 12) (137,702)
As at 31 March 2021 60,926

RESERVE FUND

The reserve fund is available for general use and can
be spent at the discretion of the FSDC. Government
subventions at the end of a financial year, which form
a part of the reserve fund, shall not exceed 25% of the
Government subventions in the current financial year to
the FSDC (“the reserve ceiling”). The amount in excess of
the reserve ceiling would be returned to the Government
in the following financial year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key management personnel compensation

Directors are the key management personnel of the
FSDC. Details of the directors’ remuneration are disclosed
in note 11 to the financial statements.
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22. & kAR 7 % 2B AL 5 3

TRRGEABUFSRETERER
FETOENRNEEZE 2 TEEER
B BIRTS R AERL F S MR A&
E-FEHYREBREBREZRE &
ERAERNT FENBEREAE AR
T3 A13E1,5001) 2B T -

CRRBEABUAEATEERS
WA NS RRGE RSB
BEGERITBUG AT ESREZ AT
10,0008 4 B - A HA121E A ©

TR T AF E BT R 85 A
R En -

20219F3A31H
31 March 2021

22. FINANCIAL INDUSTRY RECRUITMENT

SCHEME FOR TOMORROW

Financial Industry Recruitment Scheme for Tomorrow
("FIRST") is the first job-creation scheme dedicated to
the financial industry, commissioned by the Financial
Services and the Treasury Bureau and administered by
the FSDC, under the HKSAR Government’'s HK$6 billion
anti-epidemic fund, with the aim of creating 1,500 full-
time jobs in the financial services sector.

FIRST allows employers to apply for a subsidy to make
new hires (“New Hires”) in the financial services sector.
The subsidy is up to HK$10,000 per month for each
eligible New Hire for 12 months.

The following table shows the amount of subsidy
reimbursed from the Government and utilised during the

year:
2021 2020
T ke
HK$ HK$
»4A18 At 1 April - -
A = 48 T 88 1 47 AL Add: Subsidy reimbursed
from the Government 18,776,699 -
B BRAGE T A R Less: Subsidy paid to
EX R eligible employers (18,776,699) -
M3A318 At 31 March - -

ANNUAL REPORT £} 2020/21 149



5 3 % M o —
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

20219F3HA31H
31 March 2021

23. 2R IESS

24.

23. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2021 2020
B B
HK$ HK$
EREEREERZA Financial assets at amortised cost
e Deposits 1,348,909 1,349,009
IRITIF X Bank balances 14,568,875 10,389,623
15,917,784 11,738,632
SRABERBEERAE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
HoAth JE TN ET 4R Other payables and accruals 719,183 687,330
HEAE Lease liabilities 15,370,213 19,096,580
16,089,396 19,783,910
cREAKRER 24. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
(a) EERR (a) Credit risk

CERBREeRIAN —FEX
EEETEEMSI RS —HREHM
128 P S=0):

CERRHEEERZIUTFNER
[z

TERERTHEBND NEHSH
EXHTHEIZHFEERR -
RTTERETRESHIRRLT

HERTT

HERSWEREERRRIE-
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Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Credit risk of counterparties are continuously
monitored.

The FSDC is exposed to counterparty credit risk
on the transactions in bank balances and rental
deposits paid.

Bank balances are only kept at banks with sound
credit rating.

Rental deposits are considered to have low credit
risk.
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2. emEABER (H)

(b)

REBE SRR
nBECRBRESEBERMNER
SHEREARBRNEERNE R
BETERABRRZZEFREE
BITAEKNEME SREEIRFAHRM
ReABSRREE-

SERAB|EMBEE A2 AH
BEHEMABENRE SERRF
RANERRBES  SEEFR
HEE-

TERNEEEEVERESER
IR MR AERA BRHNIR S
AR ER-

Hit B E ¢ RAREE-

20219F3A31H
31 March 2021

24. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the FSDC will
encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
cash commitments. Liquidity risk may result from
counterparties’ failure to settle a contractual
obligation; or inability to generate cash flows as
anticipated.

The FSDC does not have any borrowing and
therefore has no repayment liability owing to debt.
The FSDC maintains sufficient short-term liquidity
to fund its operations.

Management of the FSDC closely monitored the
cash position of the FSDC to ensure sufficient cash

is available for payment of expenditure.

Therefore, liquidity risk is considered to be minimal.
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2. emEABER (H)

(b) RBELER (&)
TREEHNERASRESRE K
RN S BN R E BRE A R 5T

2021

Ef R 5 AGHR
MERE

2020

Af 5 AMEHE

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

24. FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash

flows. The undiscounted amount is derived from

interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

BRRITR 1FR HME HR2E
BEE RenEsdst RER B R2E BAHR5F
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flows on demand 2 years 5 years
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
719,183 719,183 719,183 - -
15,370,213 16,784,152 4,577,496 4,577,496 7,629,160
16,089,396 17,503,335 5,296,679 4,577,496 7,629,160
ANATHR 1F R SME EAiVES
G Reneest BEX BAREF BARSE EANES
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flows on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
& & & ik ik ik
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
687,330 687,330 687,330 -
19,096,580 21,361,648 4,577,496 4,577,496 9,154,992 3,051,664
19,783,910 22,048,978 5,264,826 4,577,496 9,154,992 3,051,664

A LB s R R RN HBRAER T E - — AR IR A R -

If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese versions of this auditor’s report, the English version shall prevail.
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